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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company, | am pleased
to present to you the 2017 annual report of the Company (which together
with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”).

During the year under review, the Group continued with its efforts in
developing the money lending business despite keen market competition in
Hong Kong. The Group’s average loan balance increased significantly from
approximately HK$661.33 million as at 31 December 2016 to approximately
HK$974.70 million as at 31 December 2017. The Group's revenue increased
to approximately HK$116.19 million as compared to approximately HK$81.60
million in the previous year. The Group recorded profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$53.18 million,
representing an increase of approximately 58.05% when compared to the

previous year.

Considering the potential development of the securities related business and
taking into account the interest of the Group and its shareholders as a
whole, the Company invested in this business field through share
subscriptions and acquisition of Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited,
which has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in October

2017.

The external operating environment had been challenging with net interest
margin still under downward pressure. In order to maintain sustainable
growth of its loan business, the Group will continue to seek for loan

portfolio expansion opportunities within a balanced risk and return
framework, taking into consideration of its liquidity position from time to

time.

The Group has put emphasis on its rising corporate social responsibility.
While it is committed to economic development, environmental preservation
and social involvement, it utilises its influence among different stakeholders
to encourage involvements in various social aspects. The ultimate aim is to
achieve long term sustainable development for both the Group and the

community.
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In view of the uncertain global economic outlook, the Group will actively
pursue opportunities and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard
of risk management which ensures that risks are assessed and controlled in
accordance with the Group's stringent policies.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the
shareholders of the Company and customers for their continuing loyalty and
support. Relying on the diligence and dedication of its employees, the Group
will maintain its unwavering focus on the sustainability of its objectives while
ensuring the long-term success of the Group.

Li Sin Hung Maxim
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of money lending and
securities trading. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
continued to focus on conducting money lending business by providing both
secured and unsecured loans to customers, including individuals, corporations
and foreign domestic workers. At the same time, the Group also carried on
securities trading business for the provision services in securities brokerage

and investments in listed securities.

During the year, in order to enhance its competitiveness and to maintain its
market position within the ever changing industry and economy, the Group
continued to develop its loan portfolio by diversifying its customer base, in
particular individual and corporate customers from different market
segments. For the year under review, the Group's average loan balance
increased from approximately HK$661.33 million as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately HK$974.70 million as at 31 December 2017. Meanwhile, to
ensure the credit quality of loan portfolio from time to time and after the
change of loan portfolio composition, the Group put considerable effort in
strengthening the credit risk control by reviewing and modifying its current

credit assessments and control measures.

On 20 June 2017, in order to maintain sufficient fund for the development
of the Group, the Company and Convoy Asset Management Limited
("Convoy”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which Convoy
agreed to act as the placing agent of the Company and to procure, on a
best endeavour basis during the placing period of one year commencing on
the day immediately following the date of the placing agreement, placee(s)
to subscribe for the 6% per annum notes (“6% Notes”) to be issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000
maturing on the day immediately preceding the second anniversary of the
date of issue of the 6% Notes at the placing price which equals the
principal amount of the 6% Notes. The funds raised from the placing of the
6% Notes are intended to be used as general working capital of the Group
for its money lending business, securities related business or any potential
investment opportunities. Details of the placing of the 6% Notes are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20 June 2017. The
Company has not issued any 6% Notes from then up to the date of this
annual report.
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In view of the uncertain economic outlook and the competitive money

lending market in Hong Kong, the Group actively pursued other
opportunities in other industries in order to broaden the source of revenue
and diversify business risk with the aim to enhance its value for
shareholders. At the fourth quarter of 2016, the Group initiated to invest in
securities related business through subscribing new shares of Asia Wealth
Financial Holdings Limited (“Asia Wealth”) in view of the potential of
development of this business field. Upon completion of the two subscriptions
of shares of Asia Wealth which took place in October 2016 and April 2017
respectively, Asia Wealth became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. In October 2017, the Company further acquired the remaining
equity interest in Asia Wealth. Since then, Asia Wealth has become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Details of the share subscriptions and
acquisition of Asia Wealth are set out in the sub-paragraph headed
"Subscription and Acquisition of Shares in Asia Wealth” on page 15 of this

annual report.

In light of the acquisition of Asia Wealth, securities trading business has
become a new business of the Group. The wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia
Wealth, namely Asia Wealth Securities Limited, holds the licence to carry on
Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). The
Group will strive to develop the customer base in securities trading business.

In the future, while maintaining consistent availability of liquidity for money
lending business, the Group will closely monitor its cash position to explore
if there are any potential investment opportunities, including but not limited
to investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed equity securities or project-
based investments, subject to the prevailing market condition and the
position of the Group. While pursuing the investment opportunities, the
Group will take into account of the potential returns and seek to balance

the possible market risks and liquidity risks exposures.

Looking ahead, the Group will maintain healthy development of different
business segments to consolidate its business portfolio and diversify its
source of income, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders.
While leveraging its experience in money lending business, the Group would
like to develop its business and to further enlarge its customer base in
different territories including Mainland China and Macau in light of the keen
competition in the ever-changing local market. Meanwhile, the Group will
also closely monitor its capital base from time to time and will pursue
corresponding solutions where necessary in order to maintain sufficient
funding for different potential opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The Group's revenue is derived from interest received from the provision of
various types of loan products as well as commission received from the
provision of securities brokerage services to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2017,
approximately HK$116.19 million, representing an increase of approximately
42.38% over the revenue of approximately HK$81.60 million recorded for the

the revenue generated was
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year ended 31 December 2016. The revenue for the year under review
comprised loan interest income amounting to approximately HK$115.88
million (2016: approximately HK$81.60 million) and commission income from
securities brokerage services that amounted to approximately HK$0.30 million
(2016: not applicable).

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the growth in average
loan balance in the money lending business on the account of the Group’s
In this respect, the average loan
increased by approximately 47.38% to approximately
HK$974.70 million for the year under review as compared to approximately
HK$661.33 million in 2016.

effort in expanding its loan portfolio.
balance

Meanwhile, the average interest rate in the money lending business recorded
a decrease from approximately 12.34% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately 11.89% per annum for the year under
review.

COMPARISON OF REVENUES FROM SECURED
AND UNSECURED LOANS IN 2016 AND 2017
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Revenue breakdown for secured and unsecured loans

R RERFERUSAHA

2017 2016
—ET—tE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT

Unsecured loans BRI ER
Personal loans BAER 46,265 38,945
Corporate loans TEER 27,143 17,204
Foreign domestic workers loans INEREBIER 5,806 5,514
Sub-total U\ 79,214 61,663

Secured loans FHRFER
First property mortgage loans E-—MERBER 6,752 10,135
Subordinated property mortgage loans EE—MERBER 1,661 6,134
Other secured loans HEthBERER 28,256 3,669
Sub-total INEE 36,669 19,938
Total @t 115,883 81,601

NET INTEREST MARGIN FEE

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 10.93% for the
year ended 31 December 2017, representing a drop compared to that of
approximately 12.22% for the corresponding period in 2016. In respect of
unsecured loans, the net interest margin decreased from approximately
12.36% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 11.00% for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Meanwhile, net interest margin in
respect of secured loans decreased from approximately 11.83% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 10.77% for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The decrease in overall net interest margin was primarily due to the Group's

pricing strategy under the low interest rate environment of the competitive
money lending industry.
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Net interest margin

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 /& 57 5% & 2 M (continued i)

BRE

2017 2016
—T—tF e A

Unsecured loans BEEER
Individuals (EPN 11.64% 13.00%
Corporations = 8.75% 9.16%
Foreign domestic workers INERERBT 47.18% 47.15%

Secured loans AREER
Individuals & A 10.72% 11.71%
Corporations =5 10.79% 12.15%
All loans FAEEm® 10.93% 12.22%
Unsecured loans | B R 11.00% 12.36%
Secured loans BHEFER 10.77% 11.83%

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other recorded an from

approximately HK$1.49 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to

income increase of approximately 96.82%
approximately HK$2.93 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Group's other income mainly comprises other interest income received from
its money lending and securities related businesses, dividend income derived
from investments in listed securities (i.e. financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss), rental income and bank interest income derived from bank
deposit. Other interest income was mainly generated from the interest
income received from the provision of securities brokerage services as well as
the Group's participation in a facility agreement. All of the rental income of
the Group during the year under review was generated from the investment
properties held under the name of Techlink Investments Limited
("Techlink”), a subsidiary of the Company prior to the completion of its
disposal on 20 February 2017. Rental income recorded a decrease as no
rental income was generated since the completion of disposal of Techlink.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other gains of approximately
HK$14.54 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to a
record of other losses of approximately HK$1.90 million for the year ended
31 December 2016. The turning from other losses to other gains was mainly
attributable to the facts that fair value losses on investment properties were
recorded in 2016 and that a gain on the disposal of Techlink was recognised
in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. Details of the
disposal of Techlink are set out in the announcements of the Company

dated 29 November 2016 and 2 December 2016.

Details of other income and other gains and losses are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprise employment expenses,
occupancy costs for its offices and branches and depreciation charges.
Employment expenses include directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and
bonuses, mandatory and voluntary provident fund contributions, insurance
premium for employees, directors and officers, etc. Occupancy costs include
rental expenses and management fees, government rent and rates as well as
utilities. Administrative expenses also include repair and maintenance and
general insurance premiums, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s administrative expenses
recorded an increase of approximately 127.99% to approximately HK$43.85
million when compared to approximately HK$19.23 million for the year
ended 31
employment expenses arising from the grant of performance related bonuses

December 2016 which was mainly due to the increase in

and increased lease rental payments.

Administrative expenses
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TBRX
2017 2016
—F—tfF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Employment expenses EERX 33,704 15,924
Occupancy costs MAKAR 6,278 1,572
Depreciation charges mE® 2,707 1,214
Repair and maintenance and others HERERAMAS 1,026 379
Insurance premium Rz 132 143
Total @zt 43,847 19,232

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group's other operating expenses mainly comprise impairment allowance

for loans receivable, advertising and promotion expenses, legal and

professional fees and other general expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$20.04 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, other operating expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017 decreased to approximately HK$14.82 million. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in impairment allowance for
loans receivable on individual and collective assessment for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Other operating expenses

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 /& 57 5 & D T continued &)

HibEEm%

2017 2016
—T—-tH T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Impairment allowance for loans receivable on B HERER
individual assessment VEREREE 2,786 6,750

Impairment allowance for loans receivable on SRAHERER
collective assessment B E (200) 2,964
Advertising and promotion expenses & & B R 2,156 3,131
Legal and professional fees ERERBEEA 4,085 2,677
Other general expenses Hih— A 5,996 4,522
Total “ast 14,823 20,044

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for loans from
lenders which are third parties independent of the Company and its
connected persons (“Independent Third Party(ies)”), loan notes, mortgage
loans from banks with collaterals on its buildings and investment properties.
Finance costs significantly increased from approximately HK$1.14 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$9.39 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in finance costs was mainly due
to an increase in the interest payment for the loan from an Independent
Third Party lender during the year under review as compared to that in the
corresponding period in 2016.

Finance costs
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Interest on bank loans IRITERFE 62 378
Interest on other loans HiBEHRF B 8,340 13
Effective interest expense on loan notes EXREBNERAX
i3 989 751
Total et 9,391 1,142
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately 58.05% from approximately HK$33.65 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$53.18 million for the year
ended 31
increase in revenue and a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of the Company

December 2017. The increase was mainly attributable to an

recognised in 2017.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank and cash balances (excluding
trust and segregated accounts) of approximately HK$202.02 million
(31 December 2016: approximately HK$58.63 million) and interest-bearing
loan of HK$150 million (31 December 2016:
million), all of which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

approximately HK$58.54

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no loan notes in comparison of
approximately HK$32.87 million as at 31 December 2016.

The interest-bearing loan of HK$150 million represents a credit facility from
an Independent Third Party repayable within one year from the relevant
dates of advances with an interest rate of 5% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$608.10 million (31 2016:
HK$481.51 million) and the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to
December 2016:

December approximately

current liabilities, was approximately 4.49 times (31

approximately 5.91 times).
The Group generally finances its operations by (i) cash flow from operating

activities; (i) loans and/or credit facilities from Independent Third Parties and
banks; and (iii) proceeds from the loan notes issued by the Company.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

SUBSCRIPTION AND ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN ASIA WEALTH

In view of the competitive money lending market in Hong Kong, the Group
actively pursued other opportunities in other industries in order to broaden
its source of revenue and diversify business risk with the aim to enhance its
value for shareholders. In early October 2016, after considering the potential
development of the securities related business, the Group initiated to invest
in this business field through subscribing new shares in Asia Wealth which
represented approximately 9.09% of the then enlarged issued share capital
of Asia Wealth. Subsequently on 1 April 2017, the Group further subscribed
for additional shares in Asia Wealth, thereby increasing the shareholding of
the Group in Asia Wealth to approximately 88.89% of the issued share
capital of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
additional shares. On 24 October 2017, the Group acquired the remaining
approximately 11.11% of the issued share capital of Asia Wealth, and Asia
Wealth has then become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Through the share subscriptions and acquisition in Asia Wealth, the Group
has acquired an indirect equity interest in Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Wealth, which holds the licence to carry on
Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO. Details of the
share subscriptions and acquisition in Asia Wealth are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 5 October 2016, 8 November 2016
and 24 October 2017.

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 /& 57 5% & 2 M (continued i)

HWBRAEFHEARRBREE

REE N Uk BEASIA WEALTHAY A% 15

ERBEEREMSHFEZ  REERHEMmITE
BEYeHEMEE UAERERREDBER
B BEEABRRRAHEE R F+
Rl KEEFLFHEXBHNERE N KEE
#iBREAsia WealthH) #T % 5 (15 Asia Wealth &
BB A D BITIANAI9.00% ) BB E ¥
E o BEER-TE—tFNA—RB KE@E—
R Asia Wealth® B8 MR - 44 1 3 AN 5 @ R
Asia Wealth ) J% 78 1% &= 45 fid 2 R /TR MR 12
A HAsia WealthE 317 I A& 4988.89% ° ¥ — &
—tF+AZtTIAE AEBEYEFEAsia Wealth#)
BRTAI11.11% B B1TIRA - Asia WealthB& & i &
ARAWEEWE A -5 BRERIKEAs
Wealthf& 5 - N & B UK fEAsia Wealthz 2 & [ B
ARDMEAIEELFBRAAOMERE  %AF
FEETEARBAERIITE R (BSHERH)XE
BE RS - REE XU Asia Wealthf& 17 89 5 1B #
BRARARABMA-T—XR"F+ARAB - =F
—R"F+—ANBRZZE—tF+AZ+mAZ

NEN -

E-EREMEMARAR —F-LFFR

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 57 5@ & 2D

DISPOSAL OF TECHLINK

On 29 November 2016, First Credit Limited (“FCL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement with, among others, a purchaser which is an Independent Third
and the
purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase, one ordinary share of

Party, pursuant to which FCL has conditionally agreed to sell,

Techlink, which represents the entire issued share capital of Techlink, and all
the debts owing by Techlink to FCL and its associates (if any) as at
completion at an aggregate consideration of HK$91 million subject to
adjustments at completion. The principal activity of Techlink was investment
holding and its principal assets immediately prior to completion of the
disposal was certain office premises (“Property”). In view of the capital gain
which was expected to derive from the disposal, the Directors considered
that it was in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
to dispose of Techlink in order to realise the Group’s investment in the
Property and to utilise the proceeds from the disposal for further
development of the Group’s money lending business. Details of the disposal
of Techlink are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
29 November 2016 and 2 December 2016. The disposal was completed on
20 February 2017 and Techlink has then ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The final consideration is HK$91 million and the gain on disposal
is approximately HK$13.21 million.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31

investments.

December 2017, the Group did not hold any significant

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017,
(31 December 2016: 41 staff). Total remuneration of employees for the year
ended 31 2017
approximately HK$33.46 million (31

the Group employed a total of 50 staff

December (including directors’ emoluments)
December 2016:

HK$14.79 million). The Company’s remuneration policies are formulated on

was
approximately
the basis of performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee and with reference to the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration packages of the employees of the Group comprise monthly
fixed salaries, medical insurance, contributions to statutory mandatory
provident fund scheme and share option scheme etc. Discretionary year-end
bonus based on individual performance may also be paid to employees as

recognition of and reward for their contributions.
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CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Group's assets was pledged as
security for liability.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being borrowings and obligations
under finance lease less bank and cash balances) divided by the sum of the
adjusted capital (being the share capital, retained profits and other reserves)
plus net debt. The Group recorded net cash (i.e. negative net debt) of
approximately HK$28.30 million as at 31 December 2017 as compared to the
net debt of approximately HK$39.53 million as at 31 December 2016. It was
mainly attributable to the increase in bank and cash balances as at
31 December 2017. Therefore,
approximately -3.02%) as at 31

the gearing ratio was negative (i.e.
December 2017 (31 December 2016:
approximately 4.09%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business and
securities trading business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and cost of
business are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to
the risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal.
Hence, no financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Group’s event after the reporting period are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report E% &8

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2017. This report highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended
31 December 2017, save for the code provisions A.6.1, A.6.5 and E.1.2 of
the CG Code, the Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code and no deviation from the CG Code had been noted by
the Company during the year.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting (“AGM") of the company.
At the 2016 AGM of the Company held on 28 June 2017, Mr. Sin Kwok
Lam, the then Chairman of the Board, was absent due to unexpected
business engagement. Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, the then executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, chaired the 2016 AGM
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and was available to
answer questions raised at the 2016 AGM.

Details of the deviations from code provisions A.6.1 and A.6.5 of the CG
Code are set out on page 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each of them
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating the
Group's long term strategy, determining and approving the Group’s
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
The Board

remuneration of the Directors and the adoption of any changes in

duties. is also responsible for collectively reviewing the
accounting policies and practice. The Board also communicates with the

shareholders of the Company and regulatory bodies and makes
recommendation to the shareholders on final dividend and approves the

declaration of any interim dividend.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development
of the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value,
while balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules require that the
Board includes at least three independent non-executive Directors, which
represents at least one-third of the Board and at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. On
9 October 2017, Mr. Ng Ting Chi resigned as an independent non-executive
Director. Immediately upon his resignation, the Company had four
independent non-executive Directors but none of them had appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as specified in Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. Following the
resignation of Mr. Ng, the Company used its best endeavour to identify
suitable candidate to fulfill the requirements set out in Rule 5.05(2). On
14 November 2017, the Company appointed Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo as an
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Choy has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Since then the Group has fully complied with the requirements of
Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. Save for the non-compliance disclosed
above, the Group has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the

GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” from pages 37
to 40 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B E B3RS continued &)

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”), senior management and the
compliance officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company
is in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as

Directors, at the expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company who meet on a regular
basis to review the financial results and performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and

plans approved by the Board.

There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between
members of the Board and between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Such retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders of the Company after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter of
appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a term
of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and removal

in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by two different individuals to ensure a clear division
between their responsibilities and independence. The separation ensures a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual. The Chairman of the Company for the year was Mr. Sin Kwok
Lam. Upon the resignation of Mr. Sin, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an executive
Director, was appointed as the Chairman on 7 February 2018. The
responsibility of the Chairman is to manage the Board to ensure its
effectiveness in all aspects by providing strategic and business direction. The
Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, who is
responsible for the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The
Chief Executive Officer also focuses on implementing objectives, strategies
and policies approved and delegated by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. As at the
date of this report, the Company had five independent non-executive
Directors and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year on a
quarterly basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in
advance. For other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of
significant issues in relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given
in a reasonable time in advance. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any
directors who or whose close associates (or associates for connected
transactions) have a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any
other proposal to be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the
meeting.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda at
least three days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to allow
the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that are required to
be discussed or resolved at the meeting. To enable the Directors to make
informed decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and relevant
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are sent to all
Directors three days or such other period as agreed before each Board
meeting. The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the
Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is made available to them for their review and signing.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and general R#HZEZE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—HIFE &2
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the ZEHFEEECCHMBREASHRABRINOT
following table:

Number of meetings attended/number of
meetings held during the tenure of the
relevant Director for the year ended
31 December 2017
BE-F-tE+t-A=+-HLEEHMES
REHAEFEEERY BTERRY

Board meeting General meeting
EzEa: BREXE
Total number of meetings held during RBE-F-t&#+-A=+-H
the year ended 31 December 2017 LEERBTERRY 22 1
Name of Directors B
Executive Directors BITEE
Li Sin Hung Maxim (Chairman) — EER(FE) —RZFE-NF
appointed as an executive Director on 9 January 2018~ — AN HEZ /fﬁ#? TEE:
and appointed as Chairman on 7 February 2018 RZE-NF_A+AEZHFEZE N/AZR i F N/AR 8 F
Xie Si — appointed on 15 September 2017 Wk — R-E—+FNATHAEZIT 11/11 0/0
Cao Huifang — appointed on 15 September 2017 B2 RoFT—tFAATHEHEZF 11/11 0/0
Wong Kai Lun — appointed on 9 January 2018 Bl —R-E-NE-HANAREFL N/AZR i F N/ATE A
Sin Kwok Lam — resigned as executive Director and REW —R-FE-NE-_H+H
Chairman on 7 February 2018 FERTEERTE 18122 0N
Tsang Yan Kwong (Chief Executive Officer) — resigned as B (7THAEH) — RZF—+F
an executive Director on 22 September 2017 NAZTZARIHTEEF 14/14 1”1
Leung Wai Hung — resigned on 22 September 2017 REE — ﬂff tFENAZF AT 13/14 1”1
Ho Siu Man — resigned on 22 September 2017 WER — R=F—EFAAZTZHEFF 14/14 1”1
Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHITES
Fung Kam Man B 21122 1”1
Wang Zhiwei TEs 22122 1”7
Chan Tung Tak Alain — appointed on 24 August 2017 BREE — R=F—+F A=+ AEZF 14/15 0/0
Li Long — appointed on 15 September 2017 FE—R-F—+FNATHAEZH 11/11 0/0
Choy Sze Chung Jojo — appointed on 14 November 2017 EBB — R=-F—+F+—A+HAEZIT 012 0/0
Chan Kin Keung, Eugene — appointed on 28 June 2017  BE® — R=F—+FNA=-+/\HEZIT
and resigned on 2 August 2017 IR-ZF—+E/NAZRHIT 11 0/0
Ng Ting Chi — appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned ~ REE — RZF—+FNA=+/|HEZF
on 9 October 2017 PR=ZF—+ETANREHIT 12/14 0/0
Yu Wan Hei — retired on 28 June 2017 SEE R -FE—+EAHNNARKF 44 on
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director of an issuer should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment. Among all newly appointed Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang, Dr. Chan Kin
Keung, Eugene, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, Mr. Li Long and Mr. Choy Sze
Chung Jojo had received tailored induction package covering the statutory
and regulatory obligations of directors. Mr. Ng Ting Chi did not receive any
induction on appointment as the Company was unable to arrange an
induction upon or shortly after his appointment on 28 June 2017 and
Mr. Ng resigned as a Director on 9 October 2017. Save for the non-
compliance disclosed above, all Directors newly appointed during the year
under review confirmed that they had complied with the code provision
A.6.1 of the CG Code during the year under review.

Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remain
December 2017, the
Directors, namely Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, Mr. Leung Wai
Hung, Ms. Ho Siu Man, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang, Mr. Yu Wan Hei,
Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, Mr. Li Long
and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo had participated in continuous professional

informed and relevant, during the year ended 31

development by attending training courses organised by professional firms or
institutions, or reading materials provided by the Company regarding updates
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Due to the
short tenure of their directorship, (i) Mr. Ng Ting Chi did not attend any
directors’ training during his tenure as a Director from 28 June 2017 to
9 October 2017; and (ii) Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene did not attend any
directors’ training during his tenure as a Director from 28 June 2017 to
2 August 2017. Save for the non-compliance disclosed above, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code during the year under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
Choy Sze
Fung Kam Man,

comprises four independent non-executive Directors, being Mr.
Chung Jojo (chairman of the audit committee), Dr.

Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain.

The audit committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance record of
each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out below:

%%é%@ﬁ: —HER REHREESE
NErXRERTA -ZEEHE A HEAE IR
ﬁ§$ﬁﬁ'wﬁm%i$%$§5@£r%
HHXELE  TEHEEERRBELE-
BE-Z—tH+-_A=1T—"RLEFE EFEKZ
BEgdMAREHE BREZEGHEREKRET
FREBE-T—tF+ A=+ —HLFERT
MEZZEESHANHFECHERIINT

As at As at As at As at As at

1 January 28 June 2 August 24 August 9 October

Names of committee members 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
ZE-tE RI¥-tE RIF-tE RIF-tE  RIF-tE

ZEENERE -A—-B RAZ+AH NAZH ARZ+EA +AAE
Mr. Yu Wan Hei Chairman — — — -
REERAE I — — — —
Dr. Fung Kam Man Member Member Member Member Chairman
BHXEL K& K& K& K& IR
Mr. Wang Zhiwei Member Member Member Member Member
IFhEE K& KB KB K& K&
Mr. Ng Ting Chi - Chairman Chairman Chairman —
REEEAE — IE IE £ —
Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene — Member — —
REre — % E — _ _
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain — — — Member Member
RaELtE — — — K& K&
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo - — — — —
ZRREL — — — — -

The primary duties of the audit committee are to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external

auditor; review and supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control procedures and the internal audit function

of the Company.
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Number of
meetings
attended/
number of
meetings held
during the
tenure of the
relevant
member

for the

year ended
31 December
2017

S
—g-t%
+ZA=+-H
LEEMER
BEREHA
EVS Ve
BITERRY

As at
14 November
2017

R-%-t%
+-A+mE

— 313

— 33
Member 5/5
HE 5/5
Member 5/5
KE 5/5
— n

— n

— 0/0

— 0/0
Member ”n
KE 17N
Chairman 0/0
E 0/0
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During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal audit function. It has discussed the risk
management and internal control systems with the management to ensure
that the management has performed its duty to have effective systems. The
committee has also made recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of the external auditors after reviewing the scope of work

offered, taking into account their remuneration and terms of engagement.

Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules requires that the audit committee
comprises a minimum of three non-executive directors, at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. Following the resignation of Mr. Ng Ting Chi on 9 October 2017 as
an independent non-executive Director, a member and the chairman of the
audit committee, the audit committee comprised three members who are all
independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by Dr. Fung Kam Man.
However, none of them had appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as specified in Rule
5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. On 14 November 2017, the Company
appointed Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as specified in Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member and the chairman of the
audit committee. Since then the Group has fully complied with the

requirements of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save for the non-compliance disclosed above, the Group has complied with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2017.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
comprises one executive Director, being Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (chairman of
the nomination committee) and four independent non-executive Directors,
being Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.
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T +tF+Z A=+ —HLEFE REZ

I GRITARGH IREZEENERZTHKEL

attendance record of each member at the nomination committee meetings FEREEZE_T—+tF+_-_A=Z+—HILFEE
WREZEEEINHELERIAT :

The nomination committee held 5 meetings during the year ended #H =
31 December 2017. The composition of the nomination committee and the B

held during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Number of
meetings
attended/
number of
meetings

held during the
tenure of the

relevant

member

for the

As at As at As at As at As at As at year ended

1 January 28 June 2 August 24 August 9 October 14 November 31 December

Names of committee members 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Bz

—g-t%

+ZA=+-H

LLEEMRR

REREHRM

R-B-tE& RIB-tF RIT-tF NIT-tE RIFT-tF RIT-t5 HEEERY

ZEENERE -A-B RRA=tAH NAZH ARZ=+@EA +ARB  +-A+WmB  BTEERY
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman 4/5
EEMEE £ IR IE £ I IE 415
Dr. Fung Kam Man Member Member Member Member Member Member 5/5
B EL K& K& KE K& K& KE 5/5
Mr. Wang Zhiwei Member Member Member Member Member Member 5/5
THE#EE K& K& K& K& K& K& 5/5
Mr. Yu Wan Hei Member — — — — — 212
REERL k& — — - — — 22
Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene - Member — — — - 0/0
REGBEA — KB — — — — 0/0
Mr. Ng Ting Chi — Member Member Member — — 212
REEEE — KE KE K& — — 2
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain — — — Member Member Member 12
RERZELE - - - k& X8 K& 117
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo - — — — — Member 0/0
ZREEE — — — — - %8 0/0

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure, REZZEEWMTEREARTEFTSHNEBE - A
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board ZEARNAM R EFNZTRETFZTHFATZ
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, appointment or re- AEAE EFHTHE RIZRBIIERTE
appointment or re-designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors EHBIHEREESREEZS -

and assessment of the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013 which
sets out the approach to diversity on the Board. When there is a potential
candidate of director, the Company will conduct comprehensive research on
the candidate,
employment history and qualifications of the candidate. Suitable candidate

including but not limited to the academic background,

will then be proposed to the nomination committee for further discussion.
For implementing diversity on the Board, when selecting candidates for
appointment, the nomination committee will take into account a range of
measurable objectives, including but not limited to the skills, experiences,
background, gender, age and other qualities of the potential candidates. The
nomination committee will discuss and agree on the objectives on an annual
basis and recommend them to the Board for adoption. After comprehensive
assessment, the nomination committee will then make appropriate
recommendations to the Board for approval. All appointments of Directors
will ultimately be based on merit with regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board. The nomination committee reviews the board diversity policy on a
regular basis and discuss any revision that may be required, and recommends
any proposed changes to the Board for approval. The nomination committee
considers that an appropriate balance of diversity of the Board is

maintained.

During year under review, the nomination committee has assessed and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well as the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee has discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors and other relevant issues. During the year under review, the
nomination committee also discussed and reviewed the personal profile,
experience and qualifications of Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene, Mr. Ng Ting
Chi, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang, Mr. Li Long and
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo and made recommendations to the Board for their

appointments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
comprises one executive Director, being Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, and four
independent non-executive Directors, being Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of
the remuneration committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain
and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.
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The remuneration committee held 9 meetings during the year ended ZE—tEFFT AT —HLEFE HFHE

= ERITNAAEZ - FTHEEEXNEREKED

attendance record of each member at the remuneration committee meetings FREZ-_F—tF+_A=+—BHLFELET
MEFEMWEZEgeRNEERHERIIMT

31 December 2017. The composition of the remuneration committee and the

held during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Number of
meetings
attended/
number of
meetings

held during the

tenure of the

relevant

member

for the

As at As at As at As at As at As at year ended

1 January 28 June 2 August 24 August 9 October 14 November 31 December

Names of committee members 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Bz

—g-t%

+ZRA=+-H

LLEEMRR

REREHRM

R-B-tE& RIB-tF RIT-tF NIT-tE RIFT-tF RIT-t5 HEEERY

ZEENERE -A-B RRA=tAH NAZH ARZ=+@EA +ARB  +-A+WmB  BTEERY
Dr. Fung Kam Man Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman 9/9
BEXEL £ IR IE £ I IE 99
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Member Member Member Member Member Member 719
KBS & K& K& KE KE KE %8 719
Mr. Wang Zhiwei Member Member Member Member Member Member 9/9
Mr. Yu Wan Hei Member — — — — — 212
REERL k& — — - — — 22
Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene - Member — — — - 0/0
REGBEA — KB — — — — 0/0
Mr. Ng Ting Chi — Member Member Member — — 3/4
REBRAE — K& K& KE — — 3/4
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain — — — Member Member Member 5/6
RERZELE - - - k& X8 K& 56
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo - — — — — Member 0/0
ZREEE — — — — - %8 0/0
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of the remuneration committee are to make

recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and

The primary duties

structure and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and

senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments and ensure none of the Directors or any of their

associates will determine his/her own remuneration.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee adopted the
approach under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages as well as the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. In addition, it has met to determine the
remuneration policy and structure and to assess the performance of
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the senior management for the year ended 31 December 2017 by band is
set out below:
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HE & 2% -
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RHEZ M EEBTERETHMERER
RERFABEEZRA -

BECXERTREBISK aREBEREHE
TEEFT A=t -BUEFERARNES 2

FEFHMEH T
Number of Individuals
EEAH

HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 7t % 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$ 1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,003 7t %2,000,0007% 7 2
CREDIT COMMITTEE EEZEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of
better management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of
the credit committee are responsible for, among other things, approving and
overseeing the Group’s credit policy and monitoring the Group’s loan
portfolio. The credit committee currently comprises four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang and Mr. Wong
Kai Lun.
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The credit committee held 12 meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance record of
each member at the credit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out below:

As at

Names of committee members 1 January 2017
R-F—t%

EEERENEA —HA—H
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Chairman
e B ARAE & TE
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong Member
Bk E k&
Mr. Leung Wai Hung Member
REWHRE B 8
Mr. Wong Yu Shun Billy Member
TFAREE B 8
Ms. Xie Si —
Wkt —
Ms. Cao Huifang —
BEEFLL —

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A compliance committee was established in 2010 serving the corporate
governance function of the Company, with the aim to ensure the strict
compliance of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable
to the Group, in particular the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“MLO") and the SFO, from time to time. The major
duties of the compliance committee include to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors
and to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.
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Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member

As at for the year ended
22 September 2017 31 December 2017
BE_T—t#
+-A=+—HL
EEMHEBARE
R-T—t% REHRHFEE:

AB=+=H R BITEHRARY

— 0/12

— 0/12

— 8/8

— 8/8

— 8/8

— 8/8

— 8/8

— 8/8
Member 4/4
Bk & 4/4
Member 4/4
B 8 4/4

AHRZEEEN_Z-ZTFERTL BAARAND
XERBE EERRASEBREETITIRER
RSB ERED - 8RR & %ﬁ*tﬁ%ﬁﬁ
AGEG (BEEDE163%) ([MBENES ) K&
BRI -ARZEENIEREBRRERIL
EHARFEHECEE AT ENBERERILM
E=EgFHEBER EHREREERSAE
BENEIEFEEXCER FHRERALR
REABETARZREERTNERRRES &
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The compliance committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance
committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and Mr. Choy Sze

Chung Jojo.

The compliance committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017. The composition of the compliance committee and the
attendance record of each member at the compliance committee meetings

Corporate Governance Report 1=

held during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Names of
committee members

EREREEH

Mr. Yu Wan Hei
REERE

Ms. Ho Siu Man
%GR

Dr. Fung Kam Man
BHXEL

Mr. Wang Zhiwei
IHkEE

Dr. Chan Kin Keung, Eugene
RE®ZEE

Mr. Ng Ting Chi
REERE

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain
RpErL

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
EREEE

As at
1 January
2017

R-B-t&
-B-H

Chairman
IR
Member
K&
Member
k&
Member
K&

As at
28 June
2017

R-F-t&
#“AZtAH

Member
KE
Member
K&
Member
K&
Chairman
IR
Member
K&

As at
2 August
2017

R-F-t£
NBZH

Member
®E
Chairman
Ed
Member
KE

Member
KE

As at
24 August
2017

R-B-t&
NB=+MA

Member
& &
Chairman
IR
Member
&

Member
k&
Member
&

(continued &)
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Number of
meetings
attended/
number of
meetings held
during the
tenure of the
relevant
member

for the year
ended 31
December 2017
BECT-tE
+-ZA=+-H
LEERER
KEREHA
HEEERY
BTERRY

22
22
33
33
414
4/4
44
4/4
0/0
0/0
1N
1N
1
1
0/0

AHREEGEAANES
HBHEXFE L (AREEGER)
BEEREREBIRELE -
HE_Z—+
EERTORERE -AHEESY
EREE=T—
WERZESERNERELERINNAT :
As at As at As at
22 September 9 October 14 November
2017 2017 2017
R-ZF-t& R-F-t§ RIF-tE
hA=+=H +AnB +-A+MEH
Chairman Chairman Chairman
IR Ed IR
Member Member Member
& KE &
Member — —
K& - -
Member Member Member
& KE &
— — Member
— - &

0/0
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The compliance committee holds meetings on a quarterly basis for reviewing
matters regarding the compliance of the Group with the MLO, the SFO and
other relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company
has adopted relevant compliance manuals which governs the Group’s
compliance matters in relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules

as well as other relevant regulations.

During the period under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has made
several suggestions to the Board and the management of the Company
particularly concerning risk management, environmental, social and
governance matters and the Company has acted on the recommendations of

the compliance committee.
CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit review committee in 2018 for the purpose
of enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. Dr. Fung
Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, all being
independent non-executive Directors, were appointed as the members of the
credit review committee and Dr. Fung Kam Man was appointed as the
chairman of the credit review committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 78 to 83 of this
annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Cheang Yee Wah
Eva, as the Company Secretary. She is a Chartered Financial Analysts
Charterholder, a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. During the year under review, the Company Secretary
has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 provided by RSM Hong Kong, the external auditors of the Company,
amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million. In addition, an approximately
HK$0.29 million was charged for non-audit services consisting mainly of

taxation services and interim review.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the
day-to-day operation and business development of the Group while

maintaining risk at an optimal level.

SYSTEM FEATURES: RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The risk management and internal control systems (“RM & IC Systems”) of
the Company is designed to identify and monitor risks from day-to-day
operations and it is embodied by the Board through the audit committee,
the management, the branches and departments and the internal audit
function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM & IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
In this

regards, the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM & IC

and monitoring of the RM & IC Systems on an ongoing basis.

systems established and maintained by the management of the Company at
least annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM &
IC Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM &
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

considered these systems effective and adequate.
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The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system and the RM & IC Systems. It also
develops a regular platform to discuss the RM & IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have
effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
The audit
committee considers the major investigation findings on risk management

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings. The audit
committee also regularly reviews the findings and opinions of the internal
audit function and the management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM
& IC Systems.

Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal
control of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee
has periodic review on issues including credit quality of various cases
including cases of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Review on current
loan cases are also conducted as a continuous monitoring on the credit
quality. Results and findings of the review are submitted to the Board for
further discussion.

The internal audit function is performed by Dr. Fung Kam Man, the
independent non-executive Director of the Group. The internal audit function
generally carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s RM & IC Systems.

The Management, Branches and Departments The management is
responsible for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM & IC
Systems. The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for
the Group’s policies and manuals on risk management and internal control.
The branches and departments of the Group, as the daily operation units,
are responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time
to the management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the Disclosure Policy and Procedures to promote consistent
disclosure practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO.
Under the policy, the management shall report to the Board as soon as
practicable for any event which may constitute inside information, and the
Board shall decide, if required, to make relevant disclosure in a timely

manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk Identification v

and Measurement
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Risk Control and Mitigation
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Risk Identification The branches and the major subsidiaries of the Group
are required to report on material risks identified in the Risk Management
Report (on branch or subsidiary level) which is submitted to the management
periodically.

Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk
assessment and measurement involve the participation of management in
assessing the risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk.
The management reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that
appropriate controls and measures are in place or in progress. The
management, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes,
compiles a Company Risk Management Report to the audit committee and
the internal audit function. Following review by the audit committee and
internal audit function, the Company Risk Management Report would be
submitted to the Board.

Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolving material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
policy from time to time. Such measures vary according to the type of risks
or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,

regularly monitors the Company’s risk exposure and reviews the

effectiveness of the RM & IC systems in terms of risk control and mitigation.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group's

information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding on the Group’s
business performance and strategies. It is also vital for developing and
maintaining continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a
communication platform with its shareholders and investors, where the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’'s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F-22/F, Fung House, Nos. 19-
20 Connaught

enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an

Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to

informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
All Directors endeavor to be available at the general meetings to answer any
questions raised by the shareholders.

\
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no significant change
in the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interests
are well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with
its shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation
in AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by
post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All
registered shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general
meetings of the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in
the register of members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the
meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for
special general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

1981 shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all

Pursuant to the Companies Act of Bermuda, (i)
shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the
resolution which is intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit
a statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights as
mentioned above to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communications

with Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, aged 47, is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He joined the Group and was appointed as a
Director in January 2018 and subsequently appointed as the Chairman in
February 2018. Mr. Li is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for managing the Board to ensure its
effectiveness in all aspects by providing strategic and business direction and
ensuring the loan quality of the Group. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree of
business administration and management (with honours) awarded by De
Montfort University. He worked in various companies including without
limitation a banking company and a solicitors’ firm. Mr. Li was an executive
director of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (“National
Arts”) (stock code: 8228), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability and whose shares are listed
on GEM, from 13 May 2009 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of National Arts from 9 May 2011 to 5 January 2018. Mr. Li is a
current holder of the Estate Agents License (Individual) and a Certified
Paralegal in the Institute of Paralegals.

Ms. Xie Si, aged 29, is an executive Director and the compliance officer of
the Company. She joined the Group and was appointed as a Director in
September 2017. Ms. Xie is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Xie is responsible for supervising the overall operation and
management, formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of
the Group. Ms. Xie graduated from Southwest University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy. Ms. Xie has over 8
years of experience in banking and financial industry. She has extensive
experiences in providing financial services to customers, including corporate
and individual clients.

Ms. Cao Huifang, aged 29, is an executive Director of the Company. She
joined the Group and was appointed as a Director in September 2017.
Ms. Cao is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cao is
responsible for supervising the overall operation and management,
formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of the Group.
Ms. Cao graduated from Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s degree in
commerce majoring in business English. She has extensive experience in
strategic planning, corporate finance and financial management. Ms. Cao is
currently the corporate representative, general manager and executive
director of a private company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
which is engaged

chemicals.

in design and trading of apparels and trading of

Mr. Wong Kai Lun, aged 40, is an executive Director of the Company. He
joined the Group and was appointed as a Director of the Group in January
2018. Mr. Wong is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong is
management, formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of

responsible for supervising the overall operation and
the Group. Mr. Wong has various marketing and managerial experience in
the beauty industry in Hong Kong. He is currently a marketing manager of
Pure Derma Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, which is principally engaged in the medical beauty business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree
of Master of Science in Financial Management from the University of London
and a degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of
Nottingham. Dr. Fung has been certified as a Project Management
Professional by the Project Management Institute. He is a certified financial
planner certified by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a
certified financial planner of The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial
Planners. Dr. Fung has experience of more than 20 years in the continuing
education and vocational training field. Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed
higher education development and quality assurance consultant. Dr. Fung was
an independent non-executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited (currently
known as “Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited”), (stock code: 08086),
the shares of which are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to 2 November
2017. He acted as the independent non-executive director of Jia Meng
Holdings Limited (currently known as “EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(KY)"), (stock code: 08101), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from
1 April 2015 to 21 September 2016.

Mr.
executive Director in October 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from Taiyuan

Wang Zhiwei, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-

Institute of Machinery (currently known as the North University of China) in
1990 with a bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Wang has
been qualified as a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the PRC
since December 2000. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience in holding
senior executive positions in various corporations in the PRC with businesses
involving e-commerce, software development, coal and energy development
and solar power. Mr. Wang is an independent non-executive director of
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited
(stock code: 08081), the shares of which are listed on GEM. From January
2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice president of a subsidiary of Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 00397), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From May 2014 to June
2016, Mr. Wang was also working as the deputy general manager of China
Demeter Investments Limited (currently known as China Demeter Financial
Investments Limited) (stock code: 08120), the shares of which are listed on
the GEM, and participated in seeking potential investment opportunities in
different projects.
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Biographigal Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2017. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of science
degree (with honours) in architecture and a diploma in architecture from the
Polytechnic of North London, United Kingdom in 1979 and 1983
respectively. He had held a corporate membership of the Royal Institute of
British Architects, United Kingdom from 1985 to 2014, and had been a
registered member of the Architects Registration Board of the United
Kingdom from 1984 to 2014, a member of the Royal Architectural Institute
of Canada from 1994 to 2014 and a graduate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects from 1980 to 2014. Mr. Chan has over 16 years of
experience in the architecture sector and had worked as an architect, senior
architect or project manager in various architecture firms in London, United
Kingdom, Canada and Hong Kong from 1983 to 1999. Mr. Chan had also
been an independent non-executive Director of the Company from April
2010 to June 2013.

Mr. Li Long, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in September 2017. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in the
trading industry. Mr. Li has held managerial positions in various sizeable
corporations in the PRC from 1985 to 2013. He has mainly been responsible
for business development, marketing and financial management.

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2017. Mr. Choy obtained a master of
business administration degree from the University of Wales, Newport in
2004 and a master of business law degree from the Monash University in
Australia in 2007. Mr. Choy is a fellow member of each of the Institute of
Financial Accountants of the United Kingdom, the Institute of Public
Accountants of Australia, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the
Institute of Compliance Officers. He is also a member of the Cash Market
Consultative Panel of the Stock Exchange and the Society of Registered
Financial Planners. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and has worked as a responsible officer and representative in
various securities companies in Hong Kong. He is currently the vice chairman
and a responsible officer of National Resources Securities Limited for Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO and also the permanent
honorable president and the vice chairman of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited. Mr. Choy is currently an independent non-executive director
of Luye Pharma Group Ltd. (stock code: 2186), Sparkle Roll Group Limited
(stock code: 0970) and Zhaojin Mining Industry Company Limited (stock
code: 1818), all being limited companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of Chengdu
PUTIAN Telecommunications Cable Company Limited* (stock code: 1202), a
limited company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from February 2006 to January 2018. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Orient Securities International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8001), a limited company whose shares are listed on GEM, from
March 2010 to May 2016.

* For identification purposes only.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is responsible for supervising the overall operation and
management and formulating market strategies of the Group. Mr. Tsang
joined the Group in August 2007 and was appointed as an executive
Director in April 2010. Following his resignation as an executive Director in
September 2017, Mr. Tsang remains as the general manager of First Credit
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, overseeing the money
lending business of the Group. He has extensive experience in the finance
field through his working experience in the finance sector for over 27 years
specialising in money lending industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a master degree
of business from the University of Newcastle, Australia and a diploma in
management studies jointly from Lingnan University and The Hong Kong
Management Association.
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The Board
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
31 December 2017. All cross-references mentioned in this directors’ report
forms part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. The Group
also conducts securities trading business for the provision of services in
relation to securities brokerage and investments in listed securities

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements from pages 84 to 89 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017, particulars of important events affecting the Group since
the end of the financial year, an analysis of the Group’s performance using
financial key performance indicators, and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business are provided in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” from page 5 to page 6 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from page 7 to page 17 of this annual report.
Description of any matter that is material for appreciation of the state of the

Group's affairs can be found throughout this annual report.
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(continued &)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group’s internal processes,
including but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud,
which may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business
operations and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will
result in interruption of the loan and securities trading operation of the
Group and potential leakage of confidential information. Operational risks
may also result from emergencies and unexpected events such as natural
hazards. Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted and
in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is in compliance
with the relevant requirements, such as the MLO and the SFO. Internal
reporting procedures have been established and when any suspected case of
employee misconduct and/or fraud arises, any staff can report directly to the
management. The staff handbook has also stipulated that employee
misconduct and fraud are prohibited. The Group places considerable value on
data security and data privacy. The computer systems are secured with access
controls, while maintenance and update are conducted regularly by the
information technology services providers. Anti-virus softwares have been
installed for all computers in office.

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group's normal Interest rate risk relates to the
fluctuation of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of

course of business.

the Group. Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to
meet their contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's
ability in maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The
above financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue
generated as well as impairment loss on loans receivables. Further discussion
about the financial risks is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements from page 121 to page 130 of this annual report. For credit risk
in respect of the loan portfolio, the Group has developed and adopted a set
of loan approval procedures and credit policy. The Group strives to maintain
sufficient cash and adequate funding available from its shareholders and
committed line(s) of funding from financial institution(s). To ensure the
Group maintains sufficient capital and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements, the cash flows projection of the Group is reviewed on a
regular basis. For the securities trading business of the Group, the financial
resources are regularly reviewed to ensure that the financial reserve of the
Group can meet the liquid capital requirement under the relevant rules and

regulations.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and
fluctuation of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may
generally affect market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in
particular the customers for personal loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group’s revenue. The Group would from time
to time fine-tune the Group's business strategies, policies and procedures, in
particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.
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Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and
regulations. Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may
bring various consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the
revocation or suspension of the money lenders licence, licence to carry on
Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under SFO and/or the
imposition of penalties resulting from the offence. The compliance
committee of the Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict
compliance of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable
to the Group. The Company has also adopted a compliance policy and
manual which governs the Company’s compliance matters in relation to the
MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant regulations. More
information about the compliance committee of the Company is set out in
the sub-paragraph headed “Compliance Committee” in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” from page 30 to page 32 of this annual

report.

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from page

33 to page 35 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the
community and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the
environment caused by the operation of its business and enhancing its
influence among different stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an

environmental-friendly business mechanism across its operation.

The Group encourages treasure and efficient use of natural resources such as
electricity, water and papers. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines are
provided to employees to create a green workplace. Employees are
encouraged to use both sides of papers, recycled papers, or choosing “2
pages per sheet” printing setting when printing documents. Also, the Group
nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 610 kg of used papers were
recycled during the year under review. The Group also initiates to reduce
it introduced the

container recycling campaign” and “no gift wrapping campaign” during last

waste on festive occasions. For instance, “mooncake

Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas respectively.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and performance are set
out in the paragraph headed “Environment” in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report from page 57 to page 77 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM. In light of this,
governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice

the Group upholds high corporate

complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on its money lending business and securities
trading business in Hong Kong which mainly include the MLO as well as the
SFO.

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and
money lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as
money lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest
rates and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money
lender in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the
MLO. The Group’s money lending business is subject to licensing
requirements. The money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court
and is renewable annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions.
Any non-compliance with the MLO may result in revocation or suspension of
the money lenders licence, imposition of fines and hindrance for future
renewal of the money lenders licence, which may have an adverse impact on

the Group’s money lending business.

The SFO regulates various securities related activities including dealing in
securities. Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is licensed for Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity
under the SFO. Being a licensed corporation under the SFO, Asia Wealth
Securities Limited shall ensure, among other matters, that (i) it does not
provide any services or carry on any activities which is not within the
authorised scope of its licence; (i) any individual who carries on the
regulated activities must be duly licenced or authorised to do so; and (iii) it
shall comply with the relevant approval and notification obligations under the
SFO. In the event of any non-compliance with the SFO, the SFC has the
power to revoke or suspend the licence of the licenced corporation and
order payment of pecuniary penalty, which may have an adverse impact on

the Group’s securities trading business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there
has been no material breach or non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a material impact on the business and operations of
the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belonging to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasizes the importance of
labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and hopes to maintain open communication
with the latter, which favours a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Employees” in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report from page 62 to 64 of this annual report.

customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as
the key to good relationship with customers of the Group and are reviewed
from time to time with the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing
needs and enhance their satisfactions. The Group also strives to ensure that
honest and comprehensive information about its products is provided to
customers so that they can make appropriate informed decision. In addition,
as numerous personal and confidential information is handled and processed
by staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of customers’
personal data and privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in place.

While the Group is principally engaged in money lending business and
securities trading business, scale of the former is larger in terms of trade
volume and revenue generated. During the year under review, the Group
maintained good relationship with its major customers, including individuals
and corporations. The Group did not rely on any of its major customers as
the relevant revenue generated was not significant. During the year under
review, the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate accounted for
less than 28% of the revenue of the Group. These customers were
Independent Third Parties from the Group’s money lending business, among
which two are individuals and the other three are corporations. Two of the
customers have fully settled their respective loans by 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers ranged from 1 year to 3 years, which was negotiated on an
arm’s length basis with reference to the commercial practice and the
Group's credit policy. The top management of the Company will closely
monitor the loan portfolio, in particular the loans to major customers,
periodically and will continue to adopt risk control and management
strategies while broadening the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their close
associates nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the five largest customers of the Group during the year.
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Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office-
based, it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in
general. In other words, the Group's suppliers are mainly those who provide
services supporting the daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning
service companies, office consumables suppliers and so on. The Group
therefore considers that the risk arising from cooperation with suppliers is
minimal. It is unlikely that the relationships with suppliers will bring
significant impact on the business operation of the Group as it is
comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether
the potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of
sustainable development will be considered. During the year under review
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has worked closely with
its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on
page 180 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme adopted by the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 or subsisted at the end of the year.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares or
debentures.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the
laws in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVE

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity holders comprised the contributed surplus amounted to approximately
HK$213.46 million.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations and
other donations amounting to approximately HK$934,000 (2016:

HK$120,000).
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Sin Hung Maxim (Chairman) — appointed as executive Director
on 9 January 2018 and appointed as Chairman on 7 February 2018

Xie Si — appointed on 15 September 2017

Cao Huifang — appointed on 15 September 2017

Wong Kai Lun — appointed on 9 January 2018

Sin Kwok Lam — resigned as Chairman and executive Director
on 7 February 2018

Tsang Yan Kwong (Chief Executive Officer) — resigned as
executive Director on 22 September 2017

Leung Wai Hung — resigned on 22 September 2017

Ho Siu Man — resigned on 22 September 2017
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fung Kam Man

Wang Zhiwei

Chan Tung Tak Alain — appointed on 24 August 2017

Li Long — appointed on 15 September 2017

Choy Sze Chung Jojo — appointed on 14 November 2017

Chan Kin Keung, Eugene — appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on
2 August 2017

Ng Ting Chi — appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on
9 October 2017

Yu Wan Hei — retired on 28 June 2017

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company held after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. By virtue of the above
Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang,
Mr. Wong Kai Lun, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, Mr. Li Long and Mr. Choy Sze
Chung Jojo will hold office until the forthcoming AGM of the Company and

requirement, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, Ms.

be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out from page 37 to page 40 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the existing independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years and each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of two years, all
being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance with the
Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a

service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration package generally includes fees
or salary, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits and so on, details of
which are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
Emolument payable to Directors is generally determined based on the
results, individual

Group’s operating performance and experience and

comparable market practices.

The Share Option Scheme was also adopted for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

On 7 February 2018, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company following the resignation of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam as
an executive Director and the Chairman. In light of the new position taken
up by Mr. Li, a supplemental service agreement was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Li on 7 February 2018, pursuant to which the salary
of Mr. Li is increased to HK$60,000 per month and Mr. Li will be entitled to
an additional sum equivalent to his then current monthly salary (or such pro-
rated sum for an incomplete year of service) which shall be payable in
December every year. The revised remuneration package of Mr. Li was
determined with reference to his role, qualification, level of experience, the
contribution to be made by him to the Company and the prevailing market
conditions. Mr. Li will also be entitled to a discretionary bonus to be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having regard to his
performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective
close associates had any business or interests in business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had material interest (whether directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in
force during the year under review and remained in force as of the date of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the
Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY

Long Position

Name of Director Capacity

Exps S

Sin Kwok Lam (Note 1)
AR (B EET)

Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2)

4% 0% B HE o (P RE2)

Notes:

1. Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as a Director on 7 February 2018.

2. Best Year Enterprises Limited (“Best Year”) and Enhance Pacific Limited
("Enhance Pacific”) are the registered and beneficial owners of these shares.
Best Year, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is interested in 365,656,000
shares. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam is
deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Best Year is interested.
Enhance Pacific, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is interested in 39,200,000
shares. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam is
deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Enhance Pacific is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position

R_E—tH+-A=+—8H"

RAR AR R

Name

E1 Vg -+

Convoy Global Holdings Limited

Capacity

S

Interest of controlled corporations

(Note 1)

BRRRZERBR QA EEhrEEzs ()

Convoy (BVI) Limited Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 1)

Convoy (BVI) Limited SEHEE R ()

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BEmEA A FED

Convoy Collateral Limited

SN RN N

Ng Kam Lung Volais Beneficial owner

REBE ERBEEA

Best Year Beneficial owner (Note 2)

oS EnEAR A (M5E2)

Note 1: These shares are held by Convoy Collateral Limited, which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Convoy Collateral
Limited is wholly-owned by Convoy (BVI) Limited, which is in turn
wholly-owned by Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock code: 01019),
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. By
virtue of the SFO, Convoy (BVI) Limited and Convoy Global Holdings
Limited are deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Convoy
Collateral Limited is interested.

Note 2: Best Year is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with

limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person

(other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who/which

had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(M

On 11 May 2016, in order to maintain sufficient fund for the expansion
of the Group's loan portfolio, the Company and Convoy entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which Convoy agreed to act as the
placing agent of the Company and to procure, on a best endeavour
basis, place(s) to subscribe for the 4.5% per annum notes (“4.5%
Notes”) to be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$100,000,000 maturing on the day immediately
preceding the second anniversary of the issue date of the 4.5% Notes
at the placing price which equals to the principal amount of the 4.5%
Notes. Convoy was entitled to a placing commission of 0.5% of the
aggregate placing price of the 4.5% Notes subscribed for or
purchased by the placee(s) successfully procured by or on behalf of
Convoy. Convoy is authorised to deduct such aggregate amount of the
commission from the payment to be made by it to the Company at
closing(s) of the subscription of the 4.5% Notes.

Convoy was an Independent Third Party at the time of signing the
placing agreement in respect of the 4.5% Notes. Convoy Collateral
Limited became a substantial shareholder of the Company on
13 September 2016 and Convoy, being an associate of Convoy
Limited,

Collateral therefore became a connected person of the

Company since then.

The placing period for the 4.5% Notes expired on 11 May 2017. Out
of the aggregate amount of HK$165,000 placing commission of the
said notes which was paid to Convoy in 2016, an aggregate amount
of HK$126,822 was recognised and recorded for the year ended
31 December 2017, while an aggregate amount of HK$38,178 was
recognised and recorded for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Further details of the placing of the 4.5% Notes by Convoy are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 11 May 2016 and
27 June 2016.

\
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On 20 June 2017, in order to maintain sufficient fund for the
development of the Group, the Company and Convoy further entered
into a placing agreement, pursuant to which Convoy agreed to act as
the placing agent of the Company and to procure, on a best
endeavour basis during the placing period of one year commencing on
the day immediately following the date of such placing agreement,
placee(s) to subscribe for the 6% Notes to be issued by the Company
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000 maturing
on the day immediately preceding the second anniversary of the issue
date of the 6% Notes at the placing price which equals the principal
amount of the 6% Notes. Convoy is entitled to a placing commission
of 3.8% of the aggregate placing price of the 6% Notes subscribed
for or purchased by placee(s) successfully procured by or on behalf of
Convoy. Convoy is authorised to deduct such aggregate amount of the
commission from the payment to be made by it to the Company at
closing(s) of the subscription of the 6% Notes.

As Convoy is an associate of Convoy Collateral Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, Convoy is a connected
person of the Company and the payment of the placing commission
by the Company to Convoy in respect of the 6% Notes will constitute
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no placing commission was
paid to Convoy in respect of the placing of the 6% Notes as the
Company has not issued any 6% Notes in 2017.

Further details of the placing agreement in respect of the 6% Notes
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 June
2017.
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(3) On 24 October 2017,
("Vendor")
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to sell, and

the Company and Mr. Ling Koon Wah

entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
the Company has agreed to purchase, the shares in Asia Wealth
which represented approximately 11.11% of its issued share capital
("Acquisition”) at an aggregate consideration of HK$15,000,000. The
consideration was settled by the Company in cash upon completion of
the Acquisition which took place upon signing of the SP Agreement
on 24 October 2017.
Acquisition, Asia Wealth was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

Immediately prior to completion of the

Company which was owned as to approximately 88.89% by the
Company and as to approximately 11.11% by the Vendor. In order to
enhance the control efficiency and facilitate management, the
Company decided to acquire the remaining equity interest in Asia
Wealth. The Vendor, being a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of Asia Wealth immediately prior to completion of
the Acquisition, was a connected person of the Company at subsidiary
level and therefore the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Further
details of the Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 24 October 2017.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during

the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The related party transaction stated in note 42(a) to the consolidated
financial statements which relates to the transaction with Convoy falls under
the definition of “connected transactions” under the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules for such connected

transaction.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from page 18 to page 36 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of annual report.

AUDITORS

During the year, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") was appointed as the auditors
of the Company by the shareholders at the AGM for the year ended
31 December 2017. RSM will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint RSM and
to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Sin Hung Maxim

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
("ESG Guide") set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. This ESG Report highlights
the initiatives and efforts of the Company and its key subsidiaries (including
First Credit Limited and Asia Wealth Securities Limited) in the commitment to
sustainable development and corporate social responsibility in the course of
their principal business of money lending and securities trading. For the sake
of materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are
not relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report.
The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in
the ESG Guide for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MISSION STATEMENT

Engaging in the finance industry in Hong Kong, the Group has been
emphasizing its rising corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and role in
sustainable development of the community. CSR is not empty talk; the Group
has put considerable efforts in exploring different possibilities to enhance its
positive impacts to the community in economic, environmental, social aspects
and so on throughout the past year. The following shows the five major
areas of concern that the Group emphasises and strives to improve:

Economy

Customer

ER

/)

oY

( X

Environment
i

In pursuing various objectives, the Group adopts a balanced approach to
consider all the above areas of concern on a case-by-case basis.
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GUIDING PRINCIPLES

When designing business practice and making business decisions across its
operations, the Group takes the following general principles into account:

— Economy: acts as a socially responsible economic contributor in the
community; upholds high corporate governance standards and strives
to comply with all relevant ordinances and regulations;

— Customers: provides customer-oriented solutions and quality services to
customers; respects and protects customers personal data privacy and
security;

— Employees: promotes equal opportunities and combats any kind of
discrimination; provides a safe and healthy working environment to
employees;

— Environment: adopts the Three R’s principles (i.e. reduce, reuse and
recycle), minimizing its carbon footprint and considering cost-
environmental-friendly products and services; and

— Community: encourages social commitment in any practicable ways;
enhances the positive impacts of the Group to the community.

The above general principles shall be embedded into the Group’s operation

as they relate to its different stakeholders as well as different business
decisions and practices.
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

CSR STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Review and discuss on the

The Board
EXE

Approve/amend CSR-related policies

Compliance
Committee

EREEE

Review and discuss on the effectiveness
and compliance of CSR-related policies

regulations

Report findings and make

recommendations to the Board

CSR Workforce
SEHETEHEITEERK

and monitor
CSR-related

Introduce, facilitate
implementation of
policies and measures

Conduct review on the CSR
commitment and performance of the
Group

Report findings and make
recommendations to Compliance
Committee

8
T HERBER RIES A\ B ERBEED

Branches/Departments

5118

Incorporate relevant
guidelines into

operations

policies and -

daily business

The CSR commitment of the Group involves participation of every employee
from every branch and department. Policies and guidelines covering areas
such as business operations manual, compliance, staff working environment
and welfare, recruitment and so on are established and incorporated into day
to day operations of the Group.

A corporate social responsibility workforce (“CSR Workforce”) is established
to introduce and facilitate implementation of CSR-related policies and
measures. It ensures that employees are well-informed of any introductions
of or amendments to the CSR-related policies and measures. It also takes the
major role of monitoring and providing assistance to employees where
necessary during implementation of the CSR measures.

In addition, the CSR Workforce facilitates an open dialogue with different
stakeholders and is responsive to any changes in the regulatory factors and
market prevailing situations. Annual review is conducted regarding the CSR
commitment and performance of the Group based on all external and
internal information gathered.
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Based on the findings in its annual review, the CSR Workforce makes
recommendations and suggestions to the Compliance Committee of the
Group, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim
to enhance CSR mechanism and policies of the Group.

ECONOMY

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group upholds high corporate governance standards and strives to
ensure that its business practice complies with all relevant laws and
regulations in the jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes
and will evaluate the need to amend its existing policies and practice from
time to time. Details of the Group’s corporate governance structure and
practices are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”

from page 18 to page 36 of this annual report.
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

Engaging in the money lending business, employees have to deal with
payments in the Group’s day to day operation. Potential risks regarding
improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees cannot
be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption, fraud and anti-money
laundering etc. are established and stated to all staff. For instance, “know
your customer” principle is adopted during the loan application process
where employees are required to be sensitive in verifying the identity of
customers to ascertain whether they may pose risk of money laundering.
Maximum limit is also set for cash repayments and so on.

Enhanced customer due diligence measures are in place. Appropriate due
diligence procedures are adopted for different customers of different risk
level in order to minimise the risk of money laundering and terrorist
financing. Measures regarding monitoring and reporting suspicious cases are
in place and maintained with high importance and confidentiality. Risk
management report is prepared periodically on branch, subsidiary and
company level respectively. Details of customer due diligence measures are
set out in the Company’'s Credit Policy and Operational Manual. Any
suspicious case of money laundering or terrorist financing which comes to
the staff’'s knowledge should be reported to the management immediately.
Should there be any suspicion found, the Company will report to the Joint

Financial Intelligence Unit (“JFIU").

All employees are required to comply strictly with the above guidelines and
measures. In addition to the setting out of indicators for identifying anti-
money laundering risks,

established.

reporting and monitoring system was also

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017

AEBEETRECEEABRERBRIRELEY
FRETAZEERNMAMBEENIER A
SELHEEEHREARLSHFEREFENEH
ERIRARREER - AHAEBELEELRRE
RERZHBENAFRE1BEEE6ARE

ERE] 8-

ROt R

AEERERBEEYL EARZETEARSH
EREBEBFREAXINNRS - MTEREFTL X
RERESHIEXTNEZBERAR OB
METHABEHERES HMiFRRABRESFHE
Slefiln REAFEREFTRANBEMNT
FPIRAI BT ARKEH REXFPONFMH - #
EREREBAERERR - HIRSEBRFNRR
BER-

REFFERFEHRELORN - BEERED
BEFHFHAFSTAARKFINIRES L
Ry emREEBRERZHG D FEEZRAR -
FHEERERTRERNEGRLDRR LT
AtHERRRFEEN - BRASEHD 5 HEE
RAT WEARERAREENERERRSE -
EFERESRENHBIARARFEERER
EEFM -WMEIEZEMAERELRMD T
BT ERER - AN AR E IR JE R - fin BIRAE
MARER  ARAR A EBRE(BE
MERHADER-

2 RREEBARZEE T LiliE sl RIEHE - FRHIFT 5
BUBRIREZERRZI RREEBRATD
PX 3L -



No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified during the year under review. The Group did not receive any
whistleblowing reports from its employees during the year as well. There
were also no confirmed incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud or
money laundering against the laws of Hong Kong during the year under
review. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering for the year 2017.

ENGAGEMENT WITH SUPPLIERS

Suppliers of the Group are mainly service providers who provide services
supporting the daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning service
companies, office consumable suppliers and so on.

In order to build cooperation relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines were established and adopted to
outline the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors
with an aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to
safeguard the welfare of the workers, the community and the environment.
The criteria include application of environmentally-friendly principles,
protection of workers’ human rights, safety and health by the suppliers and

SO on.

During 2017, the risk of suppliers bringing significant, negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is negligible and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers
on aspects regarding environmental and labour protection.

CUSTOMERS
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products are
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group puts
emphasis on quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of
staff are encouraged to give prompt response and provide best assistance to

customers.
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For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, no

material breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
regarding the business and operations of the Group is found. In particular,
the Group adhered to the applicable laws regulating its principal businesses
of money lending and securities trading, i.e. MLO and SFO. In light of the
advertising practice,

the Group complied with the additional licensing

conditions imposed on money lenders which came into effect on
1 December 2016 and was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the

Group relating to advertising.

DATA PRIVACY

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data. Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations. Guidelines
regarding the handling of confidential information are provided to staff to
enhance information security in business operations and across branches.
Statement for collection of personal data is provided to customers before
collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to handle any requests from customers for access to and correction of
personal data.

No issue regarding material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations mentioned above was identified or reported during the year
regarding
customers’ privacy or loss of customer data were found. For the year ended
31 December 2017,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant

under review. In particular, no incidents infringement of

the Group was not aware of any material non-
impact on the Group relating to privacy matters.

EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal

Candidates with
different qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the

opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters.
labour base. The Recruitment Policy of the Group sets out a transparent
mechanism and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to
child and forced equal
opportunity and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that in candidates

labour prevention, recruitment and promotion,

screening process, criteria such as age, gender, marital status, nationality,
race and religious belief should not be considered to ensure equal treatment
to all applicants.
Group.

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the

During 2017, no complaints were received from employees or candidates
regarding child or forced labour, unfair treatment or discrimination during
the recruitment and promotion process.
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CARING WORKPLACE

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. A
caring workplace helps enhancing employees’ sense of belonging.

Comprehensive guidelines and procedures regarding human resources
including but not limited to recruitment, working hours, rest periods as well
as compensation are established. Employees who commit misconducts or
violate company rules may be dismissed according to the Group's dismissal
policy. In addition to maternity leave and condolence leave, employees are
entitled to have birthday leave showing the Group’s emphasis on its
relationships with employees. To promote a breastfeeding-friendly work
environment, the Group has also joined the “Say Yes to Breastfeeding”
campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with the Food and Health
Bureau, Department of Health. Moreover, staff events are held regularly as
opportunities for employees’ team building, with the aim to unite all

employees and create a harmonious working environment.

During 2017, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group relating to employees’ compensations
and dismissal, working hours and rest periods.

SAFE AND HEALTHY WORKING ENVIRONMENT

A Business Contingency Plan is in place to protect the Group from possible
threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster and to define the
recovery process developed to restore the critical business functions of the
Group. The Group strives to create a safe working environment as
recommended by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong.
For instance, computer workstations for employees are designed in the way
that will help alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort
resulting from inappropriate postures. All employees are involved in creating
a working environment that is free of discrimination and harassment, which
can reduce employees’ work stress. Any discrimination based on any grounds
in any circumstances is prohibited. Reporting channel is also provided for
staff who feels being treated unfairly. Besides, to promote healthy lifestyle,
employees are encouraged to eat green and healthy and as a result the
Group launched the “Green Monday Programme” to promote the idea of
green meal in daily life.

For the year under review, there were no incidents found in relation to
occupational health and safety. Given the nature of the Group’s money
lending and securities related business, the Group considers the risk of
employees working under health and safety threats to be insignificant. The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards for the year 2017.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their
duties, details of which are set out in the Staff Training and Development
Policy of the Group. Staff training is conducted every half year to ensure
employees are well-informed of the policies of the Group. Self-Development
Sponsorship Policy is also in place to encourage continuous learning and
development of staff by providing financial supports to nurture talents and
explore various potentials of staff.

Seminar about credit assessment was delivered to the Directors, so as to
ensure that the Directors are familiar with the market practice and the

Group’s measures in credit assessment.

ENVIRONMENT
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. The
Group is committed to minimise greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission as it
knows that problems of global warming should never be overlooked. The
Group therefore implements various measures on GHG emission reduction. In
a digitalised community, the Group encourages paperless culture when and
where practicable such as to communicate and circulate documents via
emails. The Group also welcomes video or telephone conference so as to
reduce the need of business trips of the staff. The Group encourages its staff
to take public transport and requires employees to turn off the electronic
appliances that are not in use before they get off from work.

According to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, GHG emissions can be divided
into three different scopes, namely (1) direct emission, (2) energy indirect
SME Carbon Audit Toolkit
("Toolkit”) invented by the University of Hong Kong and City University of

emission and (3) other indirect emission.
Hong Kong is designed for the use by small and medium enterprises.
Considering the scale of the Group’'s business, the Carbon Footprint
Calculator of the Toolkit is adopted in calculating the GHG emission of the
Group that is disclosed in this ESG Report. Even though the Toolkit system
was established in 2011, the Group considers that the potential inaccuracies
due to time factor causes minor influence on the results. Given the scale of
operation of the Group, the Toolkit is still considered suitable and

practicable to the Group.
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Direct emission means the direct emission from the operations that are
owned or controlled by the Group. The Group’s principal businesses are
money lending and securities trading. In other words, the main operation of
the Group is office-based and hence it generally does not have significant
direct emission of GHG. The only cause of direct emission of GHG in the
Group’s operation was from using a vehicle which runs on petrol. During the
year, a total of approximately 840 litres of petrol was used for the vehicle,
which equals to 2,275 kg CO,.

Apart from direct emission of GHG, the Group also has indirect emissions of
GHG caused by energy consumption. Indirect emissions include emissions
resulting from the generation of electricity, as well as the heating and
cooling systems. The Group generates energy indirect emissions of GHG
through our consumption of electricity in our offices and warehouse, which
includes the Central main branch, Causeway Bay branch, Mongkok branch,
office of Asia Wealth and Kwun Tong warehouse.
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HEFNERAESEREIRGINEBEREE
BB - AEBETZEKARBEREFHFER - &
E2AEETERMAETEE At —RITT
EEAREEENAERAEHEN AEEEEBRR
PEEFNAERENE —TREEA W
BOHFERAHASH - FAN ZAREAEHEA
HIBAORFH R0 - FEER2,275A T Z &bk °

REEFBRAZEREN AEBITARERERE
MEENERBERAZERE HEHEKR2E
HEBHURER RS A RGATSI BABER - &
SEERAPAENAREREELSRAEREERM
BN S EERRET WBEST HA
17 > Asia Wealth#i A E R EE R & o

Electricity (Note 1)

EH(KEE)
2016
(kg CO, eq-) 2017
(Note 2) (kg CO, eq-)
—ET-RE(2T
—&aiREE- —E—tHE(AF
(P 7E2) —HILHBEE-)
Central Main Branch HIERMATT 28,070 24,135
Causeway Bay Branch R 3 & 5 1T 17,081 15,304
Mongkok Branch EADT 5,511 5,678
Tsuen Wan Branch (Note 3) S8 77 (M EE3) 1,185 N/A RiEH
Kwun Tong Warehouse HEeE 23 821
Asia Wealth (Note 4) Asia Wealth (Fff 5£4) N/A 738 FB 15,508
Total: MR 51,870 61,446
Note 1: The emission factors are 0.79 kg CO, per unit for electricity supplied by P zE1 : FEHABEEEMENTEUEES
Hong Kong Electric and 0.54 kg CO, per unit for the electricity supplied PERO79R T — &bk - MAEHENT
by China Light and Power. BABRESHROSAAT ZEHR -
Note 2: Electricity consumption generates various types of GHG, including carbon B2 : HREENEELASHARERE BiE &

dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. To be more understandable, GHG
emissions stated above are calculated according to the unit of kg of
carbon dioxide in equivalent produced regarding the respective

consumption by the relevant branch.
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HREEMESAT _SREMTE -

E—CHReREEAERLAT —T—tEFR

65



66

illis7

A
=

Environmental, Social and Governance Report B 15 « it @ R E AR

(continued f&

Note 3: Tsuen Wan Branch was closed in April 2016. B 5E3 EESTR T RFHABH -
Note 4: The data of Asia Wealth was not available for 2016 as Asia Wealth only B} 54 : Asia WealthiR ZZ — NFEMNEIETBEA
became a subsidiary of the Company in April 2017. & AAsia Wealthi® —Z —+ 410 A4 5k A

KRARMBAR -

The increase in GHG emission from electricity consumption is mainly FEAEREHMENETEHA T —+LF0MA
attributable to the acquisition of Asia Wealth in April 2017 and the W iSAsia WealthX E&EHSA ABRAKEBATE -
consolidation of its data into that of the Group.

Other indirect emission of GHG includes the emission resulting from paper HME=RmEREHNBRER BEDEE B
disposal, waste disposal, water consumption and the transportation of staff K& Z K% -

etc.
2017
(kg CO, eq-)
(Note 1)
—ET—tF
(A =& btk
EE-)ME)
Waste Disposal (Note 2) BEMES (ME2) 3,116
Water Consumption (Note 3) K (T 3E3) N/A Ri#EH
Transportation (Note 2) R im (Mf5E2) 1,807
Note 1: The Toolkit is used to calculate the indirect emission of GHG of the Group. B AT - TEMBEAEREEAZSRENREES
WE -
Note 2: Owing to practical reasons, the data of waste disposal and transportation  Bff 52 : EREREH BUEERIBEEDA
are estimated figures. The estimation is done by taking the data of one BEHT REVWEEMS  ZMAEF TN
week as sample for waste disposal. For transportation, due to incomplete BE-—E2HNBBERAMAESH - #X
record, the data is composed of actual and estimated figures. BmME ARZHITE BEREEE
RAGEH#TF o
Note 3: Data of water consumption is not available since the Group operates in
leased office premises for which both water supply and consumption are B 5£3 : RN B 4 & FT7E 1H & 9 2 35 B ) A K
solely controlled by the building management office. The provision of HEREREREFTERRES - HREE
water consumption data or sub-meter for individual occupants is not Rt AR EUE - IR FEK 8 BRI bAKER
feasible. AEEARPRAKEE AT

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017




For the year under review, the intensity of GHG emissions was maintained at
a low level. Given that the principal businesses of the Group are office-
based, square feet is used as factor in calculating the intensity of GHG
emissions.
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REBEFA BERBHERTEETEKFE -Z
BEAREBENTEZXR IR AZET  BEMR
FHRERTERERBHERTENIER -

2017

(kg CO,

eq-/sq. feet)

—E—tE (AR

—HItBEE E

GHG Emissions in Intensity MERBHREEZE FIR)
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions ET — EEHN 0.21
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions #BE2 — BERMEHENR 5.58
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions #;E3 — HMMZEHENR 0.45
Total: HEat: 6.24

WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING

As the principal businesses of the Group are office-based, no hazardous
waste defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary
Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their disposal, 1989” was produced
during the review period. Meanwhile, the Group strives to promote recycling
habits among the employees. Staff members are also encouraged to re-use
office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes. The Group
implements policies to enhance employees’ awareness on waste separation
and recycling. The Group also organised a Mooncake Box Recycling event in
2017. In 2017, the weight of used paper collected for recycling exceeds
610 kg, implying a contribution of over 2,900 kg of GHG reductions.

In 2017, Central main branch and Mongkok branch of the Group were
relocated to new office premises and all construction wastes generated by
renovation and closure of previous premises were transported, handled and
disposed of in accordance with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354,
Laws of Hong Kong) and the relevant regulations, which minimises the
impact of such waste on the environment.

BEMERENERER

HRAEBETENPAZLE RO EARL &
EEXI-NNANFEHEREDERSEELER
ECEARNIMEENAEETEEY - AR A%
ERNBBREEER/REAEE - RATESR
BEERRAZHERER MITHARSENRE
EH FAEETHERRRESEEYBEENSER

BREANERE -AEETER Tt A8
BOWES KR _FT—+tF  HKEBBCI0D
FERERRER - BRI BIR 82,9001 fr

RERE -

R-Z—t% AKERRATREASTH R
ERBENMAETYE  MAAHAKEREELA
MENEEBHNCORBEBT B AN EIAEEEY
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Non-Hazardous Waste (Note) 2017
BEBEY(NE)=F—tF

In kg In kg/square feet

a2 AR/ EFR
Central Main Branch FIRETT 864 0.18
Causeway Bay Branch i & D 1T 120 0.10
Mongkok Branch AT 168 0.19
Asia Wealth Asia Wealth 925 0.36
Total: Total: 2,077 0.22

Note: Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste are estimated [ffif: AREERERER  BEEZEVORIE AGET8F - 5t

figures. The estimation is done by taking the data of one week as sample for

non-hazardous waste.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature and it
encourages efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption. The Group
pledged to support Earth Hour by turning off all non-essential lights for one
hour on 24 March 2017 and encouraged all staff members to do so on
25 March 2017 at home. Employees are encouraged to turn off the lights
and electronic appliances that are not in use after business hour, room
temperature in office is kept at reasonable level. Office consumables such as

light bulbs and stationery shall be replaced or purchased only when
necessary in order to avoid wastage.

The Group’s business is office-based and it merely involves normal daily
water consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water as the
water supply is managed by the building management office. Employees are
reminded to turn off water faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of
water conservation are placed at conspicuous position near the sinks to
remind employees to save water. As the saying goes “many a little makes a

mickle”, all these habits can bring significant impacts to the environment.

As the Group is not engaged in manufacturing business, its operation does
not involve the use of packaging materials.
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During 2017, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

¢ 3

*IH

R_B—tF ARELAFTHNBEMERERR
BEREBHEN HREKREEIHERELEEER
EEEEMMEEERMEEARIEAROES
MESHAREBELERTE -

2016 2017
—E-REF —E—tH
Unit Unit/square feet Unit  Unit/square feet
A& B¥YFRA=Z RE SEHRAZE
Electricity EREN
(kWh in '000s) (FERBE) 66,138 8.79 76,368 6.93
Water Consumption FEK (M)
(Note 1) N/A 7T~ i N/A REH
Total: BET 66,138 8.79 76,368 6.93
Note 1: Data of water consumption is not available since the Group operates in B &1 : AR AR BEEEMERENA5MOAK
leased office premises for which both water supply and consumption are HEREREGREFEEEES - SR
solely controlled by the building management office. The provision of R A KEUR - 1R KSR BUR S AKER
water consumption data or sub-meter for individual occupants is not be SFEEARPRAKEL AT -
feasible.
ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES BIENRKAER
Being a financial institution, most business operations of the Group involve {EA—Ff4 s AEB RO XKL ES R
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment and VHEHN - BARPER WHEESgyXiEogE

natural resources resulting from the Group’s operation except documentation
of customer information, agreements and so on that can result in the
consumption of large amount of printing papers. The Group therefore
emphasizes on minimising paper use such as promoting the use of double-
sided printing and recycling non-confidential used paper. To enhance the
environmental awareness of the staff not just within the office, but also in
daily life, the Group also provides some environmentally friendly tips to
employees such as Green Christmas Tips for reducing the waste of

packaging materials and food resulting from Christmas presents and meals.

As this is the first reporting period for which the Group discloses data on its
emission and the use of resources, including electricity consumption, water
consumption, discharges of hazardous and non-hazardous solid waste, the
Group will conduct year to year comparison for the data in the coming year
to quantify the Group’s achievements in terms of its measures on emission
and waste reduction and use of resources efficiency initiatives.
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COMMUNITY
SUPPORT SOCIAL SERVICE ORGANISATIONS

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations should be recognised
and supported. The Group has sponsored and participated in the Barrier Free
City Orienteering organised by the Hong Kong PHAB Association in March
2017. The Group will also explore possibilities to cooperate with different
organisations that share the same values and principles with it.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social
involvement and civic consciousness. In 2017, the Group establishes the First
Credit Volunteering Team. The Volunteering Team has participated in several
elderly visits organized by Po Leung Kuk in 2017, including the Mid-Autumn
elderly visit and Winter Solstice elderly visit. Employees are encouraged to
participate in community enhancement events such as volunteering and

fundraising activities etc.
AWARDS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group received the following
major awards which represent a recognition of the team efforts paid by the
Group:

— “Listed Company Award of Excellence 2017"” by PR ASIA Consultants
Limited and Hong Kong Economic Journal

— “The Distinguished SME Partners Award 2017" by PR ASIA Consultants
Limited and Hong Kong Economic Journal
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DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain opportunities for open dialogue relating
to CSR matters with various stakeholders from time to time. The Group
values every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders in order to
improve its existing CSR policies and practice. Stakeholders may write directly
to the Group’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F-22/F., Fung
House, Nos. 19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to
inquiries, feedback and

"enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk” for any

recommendation regarding CSR-related issues.

ESG PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

HIEEBE

AEEBRACEMLSETETEINHEZIEAZ NS
REABRBENER ASBERBHENT —
BERAREBREZ URABBLEHSEMTR
KRER - BFHEBUBANBRACELEELS
HHNER BERREEBREZVTEETTEARALF
ZEETELENS (MU AT ERBETHEES
19-205% 5 FC K B2 148 22248 ) 8k LA T8 5 = 88 3%

Z [ enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk J °

BR HERERRAHER

A1 — Emission

A1 — HEW
A1.1 Types of Emission and Emission Data from Vehicle Approximately 840 Litres of Petrol
VUEE B BE AR TR R R B R #I1840A T+ A M
A1.2 GHG Emissions in Total Kg CO, equivalent
BERBABERE A& tixEE
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions 2,275
oET — EEVN
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions
#[E2 — seIREBE BN
— Electricity 61,445
— B
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
HE3 — HibEEHE®
— Waste Disposal 3,116
— BEWRE
— Water Consumption N/A (Note)
— FK 3 A (B 3E)
— Transportation 1,807
— %A
Total: 68,643
@it :

EF-ERAEREBEARARN —T-LFEHR
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Scope 1 — Direct Emissions 0.21
@EN — BEEHN
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions 5.58
#[E2 — LR HE
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions 0.45
#[E3 — Hith 5 HEMW
Total: 6.24
it :

— Central Main Branch 864
— RIRETT
— Causeway Bay Branch 120
— REED T
— Mongkok Branch 168
— HEADT
— Asia Wealth (Note) 925
— Asia Wealth (B 5%)
Total: 2,077
@it :

— Central Main Branch 0.18
— RIRELT
— Causeway Bay Branch 0.10
— REED 1T
— Mongkok Branch 0.18
— HEADT
— Asia Wealth (Note) 0.36
— Asia Wealth (B 5%)
Total: 0.82
wit :
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Electricity Consumption in Intensity 6.93 unit/sq. feet
REEEE 6.93%8 i/ F 75 R

Water Consumption in Intensity N/A (Note 2)
ERKERE @A (M aE2)

Note 1: As the principal businesses of the Group are office-based, no hazardous  Fff#E1 : AR AEENEBRBATET  WERN
waste was produced during the year. WEEEHEED -

Note 2: Data of water consumption is not available since the Group operates in [ 52 : AR AR B & & FTE T &9 A% e AKX
leased office premises for which both water supply and consumption are HERHEREHEFTERRES - BREE
solely controlled by the building management. The provision of water R FAKBUE o IREFEKE BUR S AKE
consumption data or sub-meter for individual occupants is not feasible. FEEARFEAKELRAT -

F-EREARESEERAR —T—LEFFH
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REFERENCES TO HKEx ESG GUIDE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA: i

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

B

(a)  the policies; and

B &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHETABEAZENHBEERADNER

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste

FEBERIOAERBHR RAKR LS EERE
ZEMHELS

ESG Report:
RE #HeRkEBmE:

“Environment — Greenhouse Gas
Emissions Control; Use of
Resources” (page 64 to 67; page
68 to 69)

[RF — REREBHMIZES : ERME
RlI(F64E8 2 %678 :
F68H Z%698)

BEA2: EFRER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials

BEREAER(BEER  RKEEMEREME)WEER

ESG Report:
BE HeakEghms:

“Environment — Use of Resources”
(page 68)
[R5 — EREMI(FE68H)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3: RERXAER

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources

MEEITABHRRERRRERERERFEOER

ESG Report:
RS HeaRERmE:

“Environment — Environmental and
Natural Resources” (page 69)
[R5 — BREERRAAERI(E698)
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Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : B

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:
LATR -
(@)  the policies; and

BUE « I

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BITHETABEAZENEMEEZRAMNER

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare
G RAEE BERSA  TERHK KRR TZ5
e Zlh s RIBRAREA B REF

ESG Report:
RIE -HEREREE

"Employee — Employment
Opportunities & Caring Workplace”
(page 62 to 63)

[EE — ERESLEENTER
F1(F62H8ZF63H)

Aspect B2: Health and
EBmEB2: @RERE

Safety

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:
LATR -
(a)  the policies; and

K ]

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHETABEATZENEBEERRMNER

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards

FHRHZ2TEREMREEERABELES

ESG Report:
RE HeakEhms:

"Employee — Safe and Healthy
Working Environment” (page 63)
[EE — ZEREBENIHEREI(E

63E)

EF-ERAEREBEARARN —T-LFEHR




General Disclosure

—RIKE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities
ERARTEEBRITIEREO M LA RE -
15 51 B

Information on:

AT :

(a) the policies; and

& K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BITHETABEAZENREMERZRAMNER

relating to preventing child and forced labour

BRAD IEE T hls T

ESG Report:
RIE -HEREREE

“Employee — Professional
Development” (page 64)
(BB — EX%REI|(F648)

ESG Report:
RE HERERWMSE

“Employee — Employment
Opportunities” (page 62)
[EE — Em#EI(F62H)

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain
ERFEEEORE TR RBEK

ESG Report:
RE O HERERWMSE

“"Economy — Engagement with
Suppliers” (page 61)
[&f — ZRHERI(F618)
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EmEB6 : EREE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

AT

(@)  the policies; and

BUE « I

ESG Report:
RIE -HEREREE

“Customer — Products and Services &
Data Privacy” (page 61 to 62)
(5P —E@mERBERERLE]

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that (B61BEZE%628)
have a significant impact on the issuer
BFHETAGERZENHEBEZRBONER

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress

EHEFMRHEERMBRENREREZS B SELLE

EEURBH T E

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : R&EIS
General Disclosure Information on: ESG Report:

—RIE

PR

(a)  the policies; and

RE - dHaghERrms:

"Economy — Anti-Money

B & Laundering” (page 60 to 61)
[ — g BRE]
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that (FE0EE5F61H)
have a significant impact on the issuer
BIUHBETABEAZENEBEZEZRAMNNER
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
ERBE $F BFFRLERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
FETEBS : # B &
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | ESG Report:

—RIKE

of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities takes into consideration communities’ interests
RN RSERTHREEMELRFTEMNRRLEST
BEZRELENEOBE

RE -HahERME:

“Community” (page 70)
[+t & ](8708)
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RSM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 84 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

“HKICPA"”) and have been properly

Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matters we identified and how our audit addressed

the key audit matters are set out below.
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Key Audit Matter
FEEitEIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEMEINAEEAREEIR

Impairment of loans receivable from customers

FEWE FERBE

(Refer to notes 6(b) and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements)
(247 & B 7% #H % M it 6(b) KX 25)

The Group had loans receivable from customers amounting
to HK$879,868,764 as at 31 December 2017.

EEER T —t+tF+-A=T—BZERKEFERE
879,868,764 It °

As part of the Group’s credit policy, management assessed
the recoverability of each loan receivable individually and
each portfolio of loans receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics collectively.

BE EEEGERR S  EBESAFGEARLE
ERREFHENSRENERERRZERKERES ZA
Y e o

As at 31 December 2017, the impairment allowance made
for doubtful loans receivable amounted to HK$6,837,461.

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—8 REKREREREL 2R
1B % /76,837,461 7T ©

debts
assessments requires significant judgement about whether

The identification of doubtful in the individual
objective evidence for impairment exists, taking into
consideration the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. It also requires significant
estimates when determining the estimated recoverable
amount of the doubtful loans receivable.
BYUNEP2RERNFTEEZEEBAI2GERERBES
HEBEREZTNHBACENAM R TREE FERTEREEE
1 8 K I B - £ 5 B R BR B 3R 2 il 51 7T YR B & &8 A 75
AEHR BRI -

We understood and tested the key controls over the impairment
of loans receivable and focused on:

B 5 R A R A B SRR (B 2 B8 B P A I EOE R

— The identification of impairment events;

—  BRREEMH:

— The assessment and approval processes for the
determination of the extent to which impairment should
be made;

— ETEEEHRERENERIEZERE

—  The governance over the impairment assessments

processes, including the continuous re-assessment by
management that the impairment policy is still calibrated
in a way which is appropriate for the impairment risks in
the Group’s loan portfolios

— BEMHBECZEE BREEERERRERERS
BEEYE BEEERMEEGZREREBMEBESET
BETALAL ©

In addition, we performed the following substantive procedures:
phoh BEEETUTEEUERF

For the individual assessment:

B G

For a sample of impaired loans, we performed audit tests to
ascertain whether the loss event had been identified in a timely
manner and examined the expected future cash flows and the
valuation of collateral held, if any, and compared management’s
estimate to external evidence where applicable.
EEHREEFNEAETERNR  UBREREHEE
R Rl R A B AR KRR S REAFERm (WF) 2hE -
I bR E IR JE MR AR AR (MR8 ) P 4B 2 il &t o
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Key Audit Matter
FEEitEIR

Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 8 8180 3R 55 «continued i)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEMEINAEEAREEIR

Impairment of loans receivable from customers (Cont’d)

FEM & B R R B ()

For the collective assessments, management also made
assumptions and judgements in respect of the calculation of
impairment rates of each portfolio of loans receivable and
the impact of external factors such as market interest rates.
HERTAEME  BERETHFTESREERES 2 RE
KRN BEZE (AT HHE) 2 EBELRE -

For a sample of performing loans (i.e. the loans that are not
considered to be doubtful by management), we performed audit
tests to ascertain whether any impairment events had occurred
including consideration of forbearance. We considered the
payment performance and financial condition of these customers
and other relevant factors.

EEHRHTERAIEBERAAFBREZER) RAETE
BRAR AERESBLETMBRESEH  BESHRTHER -
EENEBZALETLERNRR LI BN K H A HRIEZE -

For the collective assessment

AT 1

We tested the completeness and accuracy of information and
calculations applied in the collective assessment model.
ZMARRERBRTEEXMEAEN RGFHEZTE
o

& 2 1

We assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions and
parameters adopted in the collective assessment model,
including the rate of default and adjustment for changes in
economic conditions, which are based on both historical data
and management’s estimation of future market prospects, by
comparing to externally available market data and considering
the sensitivity of the parameters adopted in the model.

B EERTEEAMEARZIE2EB BT BFEER
BYFMEREEGRGEHHE ENERELHRBEREREEY
AR5 A 5 2 5t 33 B B AN AR A] 15 1 35 BUBR 17 H B RET
REXPTIRB2 B BREFRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The Other
Information comprises all of the information in First Credit Finance Group

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
Limited's 2017 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

H ftt & %

E=ZRRHEHMEN HMBEHNERFE —ERATRE
E@“ﬁl@ A_ZE—tFFHMBEN  ETE
EEREMBHRRLABZEERE -

ZEHEAMBRENERL DREEMEH
BEENITHEMENBRENEANKELR



In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

\

Independent Auditors’ Report B 17 & B BN IR S continued #)
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two,

28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income RS E# R E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2016
—T-RF
Note HK$
B 5 77T
Revenue &= 9 116,186,005 81,601,121
Other income E A A 10 2,931,746 1,489,567
Other gains and losses E bz K g 1B 11 14,542,347 (1,898,911)
133,660,098 81,191,777
Impairment loss on goodwill AmEREEE (1,423,124) =
Administrative expenses THAX (43,846,860) (19,232,035)
Other operating expenses HihEamt (14,822,538) (20,043,705)
Profit from operations FEF 73,567,576 41,916,037
Finance costs 8 7% &M 12 (9,391,129) (1,141,893)
Profit before tax B Bt By i A 13 64,176,447 40,774,144
Income tax expense FEHEX 14 (11,270,017) (7,127,652)
Profit for the year EREF 52,906,430 33,646,492
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hib2EUA (30BRHIE)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: & 552 7 5 48 2 18 25 £
EE -
— Fair value gain on available-for-sale — At EEREEY
financial assets NFERE 83,252 —
— Release of investment revaluation reserve — BB R B Asia
upon completion of the step acquisition of Wealth Financial
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited Holdings Limited
("Asia Wealth") ([ Asia Wealth )
TERIERRIRE
ER (83,252) —
Total comprehensive income for the year SFR2EWANEE 52,906,430 33,646,492
Profit and total comprehensive income for LI TFATREEERN R
the year attributable to: 2HEWNEE:
Owners of the Company iNNETE? ZSN 53,177,690 33,646,492
Non-controlling interests I AR (271,260) —
52,906,430 33,646,492
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Earnings per share BREFA
Basic R 18 1.47 1.19
Diluted g 18 N/ATEHR N/AT i A




At 31 December 2017

consolidated Statement of Financial Position {Z& R w K

RZZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H

2016
AN
Note HK$
Bt 5= P& TT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HERFK 19 6,578,552 1,565,195
Leasehold land under finance leases RMEBROTHE L 20 1,285,161 1,328,694
Goodwill HE 21 — —
Intangible assets — trading right B EE — B 22 3,100,000 —
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 23 — 900,000
Loans receivable JR& W B 3R 25 346,022,026 439,202,306
Other assets Efth & &= 200,000 —
Deferred tax assets RAERIE & B 33 872,748 905,748
Total non-current assets EMENEE R 358,058,487 443,901,943
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivable & W B 3R 25 533,846,738 442,790,299
Accounts receivable & LT BR 3R 26 4,252,258 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or A RAF(E ABZFHN S F
loss BE 27 21,925,350 —
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFKIE e RHAE
Wk IE 19,587,475 1,400,174
Bank balances — trust and RITHER — BFFER
segregated accounts BERP 28 803,343 —
Bank and cash balances HRITRIA G B 202,020,501 58,634,302
782,435,665 502,824,775
Assets classified as held for sale PERAFBELEERE 29 — 76,800,585
Total current assets MEE E 782,435,665 579,625,360
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—+4F+-HA=+—H

2016
—E-RF
Note HK$
= & T
Current liabilities REBE
Accounts payable FE AT BR 5K 30 793,623 —
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E b e 5RIB 19,890,077 3,569,445
Interest-bearing loans FFEEM 31 150,000,000 58,537,056
Loan notes BERRE 32 — 32,873,178
Current tax payable JE 4 BN BR #% 18 3,648,488 2,956,791
174,332,188 97,936,470
Liabilities directly associated with assets HABRARELE
classified as held for sale BEEEHRABENERE 29 — 179,289
Total current liabilities mEBAGEESE 174,332,188 98,115,759
Net current assets RBEEFE 608,103,477 481,509,601
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBERADER 966,161,964 925,411,544
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAE 33 269,194 120
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 269,194 120
NET ASSETS BEFE 965,892,770 925,411,424
Capital and reserves BXRGHE
Share capital AR A< 34 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves i 36 893,316,770 847,631,649
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive BESEARIELEEE
income and accumulated in equity relating to ~ R EMEEKA KR
assets classified as held for sale SERERCEE 29 — 5,203,775
TOTAL EQUITY S EE 965,892,770 925,411,424

RZZE-NF=ZA-+=HKE=gHE 1A
TNIEERERFE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Li Sin Hung Maxim Wong Kai Lun

Fis R R
Director Director

EE EF



Share
capital

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHEAEL

Amounts

recognised in

other

comprehensive

income and

accumulated in

equity relating to

Property assets classified
Share

premium

as held for sale
(note 29)

RS EBR
fEHESEREH
2EBAREE
nRBzeHE
(M&E29)

Contributed revaluation

surplus

Capital

reserve reserve

MEER
i

Retained
profits

REEH

Proposed
final
dividend

BEAMRE

Non-
controlling
interests

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity {7 & & & &R

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLLFE

At 1 January 2016 RZF—X"F—HA—H 6048000 7,590,768 141,829,615 220,718,070 5,203,775 — 94,775,610 — — 476,165,838
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRNZEMWALE
the year — — — — — — 33,646,492 — — 33,646,492
Issue of shares on placing il € KR {TRID
(note 34(a)) (Pt 7E34(a)) 1,209,600 9,313,920 = — — — — — — 10,523,520
Issue of shares under rights issue 1R IR 4 AR B 47 AR (3
(note 34(b)) (Pt 7E34(b)) 65,318,400 349,453,440 = = = = = — — 414,771,840
Share issue expenses RIA BT X — (9,696,266) — — — — - — —  (9,696,266)
Reclassification relating to assets ~ BHAEABELES
classified as held for sale ESHAR(F
(note 29) 29) = = — — (5,203,775 5,203,775 — = — =
2016 proposed final dividend ZT-REHRERE
(note 17) B 2 (Bt 217) = = —  (7,257,600) — — — 7,257,600 — —
Changes in equity for the year FRAREED 66,528,000 349,071,094 —  (7,257,600)  (5,203,775) 5,203,775 33,646,492 7,257,600 — 449,245,586
At 31 December 2016 and RIT—~F
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-BR
—T—tF
—A—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 — 5203775 128,422,102 7,257,600 — 925,411,424
Total comprehensive income FR2ERALE
for the year — — — — — — 53,177,690 — (271,260) 52,906,430
Acquisition of a subsidiary ¢ Sl PN
(note 38(a) (B &38(a)) - - - - — - - — 9832516 9,832,516
Acquisition of non-controlling ERGIETETHE
interests without a change Eaedie §a
in control (note 38(b)) (P &38(b)) - - - - - —  (5438,744) —  (9,561,256) (15,000,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMEAR
(note 39(a)) (H&£39(a)) = = = = = (5,203,775) 5,203,775 - - -
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - — — — (7,257,600 — (7,257,600
Changes in equity for the year FRERED - - - - — (5203,775) 52,942,721  (7,257,600) — 40,481,346
At 31 December 2017 R-F—+F
+=ZA=+—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 = — 181,364,823 — — 965,892,770
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows i8R E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

pin

gX

2016
—E—RF
Note HK$
= P& TT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXBEMRLHE
Profit before tax R B A& A 64,176,447 40,774,144
Adjustments for: KATSIEAE -
Depreciation e 2,663,899 1,143,553
Amortisation of leasehold land under finance  BIEM4 FHE 1+ ith
leases i 43,533 70,876
Bank interest income RAT A BUA (132,229) (16,314)
Dividend income ESN PN (486,150) —
Other interest income H A F B A (2,018,881) —
Impairment loss on goodwill HMBREEE 1,423,124 =
Realised loss from financial assets at fair value LA A F{EF AIE 5 HY
through profit or loss PHEENE #R
&8 184,430 —
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair AR TFEFGFABERD
value through profit or loss, net TRMEERNTE
8% (1,970,110) —
Finance costs Bt 7% & M 9,391,129 1,141,893
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant and  tHEWE - BE KR E&
equipment BB () 538,774 (1,089)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — R B A R W (13,212,189) —
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing EFFTE R Asia Wealth
interest in Asia Wealth to acquisition date BRI 2 S
fair value HHAFEHKE (83,252) —
Fair value losses on investment properties REWMEANFEEE — 1,900,000
Net impairment loss on loans receivable EWE SR EEIRFRE 4,857,068 10,390,746
Recoveries of loans receivable impaired or U [B1 2 5% 18 3k 55 #Y
written off JiE W & 7R (2,270,751) (676,720)
Operating profit before working capital changes % & & & & 8 A 43 & % 7 63,104,842 54,727,089
Increase in loans receivable FE W& FRIE N (462,476) (513,461,877)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits FENFIE - ke REAM
and other receivables JE U 3k ag (38 hn)
V% (16,121,731) 364,298
Decrease in bank balances — trust and RITHER — BFFER
segregated accounts B R PR 2,626,619 —
Increase in financial assets at fair value LARAFEFABENS
through profit or loss L& 2 N (20,139,670) —
Decrease in accounts receivable JE L2 AR RO 3,742,110 —
Decrease in accounts payable FE A BR FROR 2 (10,340,099) =
Increase in accruals and other payables FESH B A R H i FE - 3R
BN 9,815,852 1,610,386
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEME(FTA)RE 32,225,447 (456,760,104)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEBFEH (10,236,246) (5,666,949)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating gras g ane S (FRF)
il ReFE 21,989,201 (462,427,053)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #5725 IR 5% /A & % (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

2016
—T—RF
Note HK$
B 2 & T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #HREFHMIREFE
Bank interest received 2R 1T F & 132,229 16,314
Dividend received 2R B 486,150 —
Other interest received B R B 655,195 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYVE BEEEEH (7,909,955) (2,776,096)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets WA ESmEE — (900,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEW¥% « BE &R &
equipment 1S 3 IE — 1,800
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary s — B A R TSR
il 39(a) 89,796,195 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—HEHE LR 38(a) 4,950,107 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing BEESME(FTA)
activities IH & F R 88,109,921 (3,657,982)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIZFHMIREFE
Proceeds from placing of new shares B & 37 IR 10 P 15 308 34(a) — 10,523,520
Proceeds from rights issue fH B% BT 18 F00E 34(b) — 414,771,840
Proceeds from issuance of loan notes BOTEREEAMEBRE — 32,835,000
Share issue expenses paid EMEHETAX — (9,696,266)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests without 7 22 i ## 7~ 1 U B
a change in control FEFE A HE 2 38(b) (15,000,000) —
Interest-bearing loans raised FEETRER 39(b) 150,000,000 50,000,000
Repayment of interest-bearing loans BEFTEER 39(b) (58,537,056) (1,016,542)
Repayment of loan notes BEERRIE 39(b) (33,000,000) —
Interest paid B F & 39(b) (2,918,267) (1,032,019)
Dividends paid B E (7,257,600) —
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEHMESREFE 33,287,077 496,385,533
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&RFFEEYENF
EQUIVALENTS i 143,386,199 30,300,498
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENHRERBRELEEYD
BEGINNING OF YEAR 58,634,302 28,333,804
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 202,020,501 58,634,302
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH ReRBFEEBEYER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5

Bank and cash balances R1T RIR € E 8 202,020,501 58,634,302
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GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business was
changed from Units 907-911, 9/F., Far East Consortium Building, 121
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong to 21/F., Fung House, 19-20
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong during the year. The Company’s
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017, the Securities
and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange to suspend all
dealings in the shares of the Company. As at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the trading of shares of the Company
remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated

financial statements.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {7 & /4 % &R &R M 51 \::

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(A)

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, the Amendments to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The effect of the amendments on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements has been the inclusion of

additional disclosures in note 39(B).

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2017. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BEEMBHRELFESF ST A

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BEVBREENFZISHEREERTFSE L2 WA
HKFRS 16 Leases

BEREMBREERE1RAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ

/ =y

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the Group’s
quarterly review report for the three months ending 31 March
2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards
are initially applied in that quarterly review report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will
not restate comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of
the Company have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise and measure either a
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. The
Group expects that the application of the new impairment
model will result in the earlier recognition of impairment losses
but is unable to quantify the impact as detailed credit analysis
is not yet completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15

15 establishes a comprehensive framework for

will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
and HKAS 11,
specifies the accounting for revenue from construction

of services, Construction contracts, which

contracts.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. The standard permits either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption. The
Group intends to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact
of the adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1
January 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &

/ =y

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont'd)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the timing of revenue recognition is expected to be
affected.

Currently, interest income charged on loan facilities is
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method, whereas revenue from brokerage services is recognised
on the date of transaction when the relevant services are
rendered.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over

time:

a) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the
entity performs;

b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(@) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont'd)

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not
likely to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue
from the brokerage services.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward the accounting requirements
for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating or financing
leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 S 87 75 3R 72 MY 5T continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HE-ZT—tHF+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. The
Group’s office property leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the
Group may need to recognise and measure a liability at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases.
The interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The
Group's assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 41, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties amounted to HK$12,624,335 as at 31 December
2017. These leases are expected to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16
is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of
discounting and the transition reliefs available to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are

historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise

measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(A)  CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(A)

CONSOLIDATION (Cont‘d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable,
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement

directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-

of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & 84 7% 38 28 M 2+ (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(A)

CONSOLIDATION (Cont‘d)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets

given, equity

instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent

consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-

date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a business

combination to calculate the goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"”) or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(C) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use in the
supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases
Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixture

Office equipment

Computer

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or

loss.

Over the lease terms
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

o For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(D)  LEASES

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are

accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term,
a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the

inception of the lease.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets over the shorter of the lease term and their

estimated useful lives.

4. TEEFHEE)

D)

4

(i)

(i)

RERELD

ABEERGENAERRK
CRBALOIBEBEAREED
HEHRBEEMRD -

EAEESAAAR  HEM
& CBRE (T B 8 A BT IR 22
B RERRZEREERR
R -

EAEEAHBAR E2H
w2 A RARRBEBNR
HERRR -

BMEEY

HEEREAENAARRKE
BERAS BB E=AREENE
ENERBERD BERED
ERBRFZEEEEZ A FE
EeEHEeRERE Z2REE
(MEDEREFRBRHEE) A
AR o

MEMENBE T ZEERREER
EREZRAMEEGEERSE
HhREEAERE -

A

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

(D)

LEASES (Cont'a)

(iif)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment, unless it is clear that both elements are
in which case the entire lease is

operating leases,

classified as an operating lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(E)  INTANGIBLE ASSETS — TRADING RIGHT

Trading right with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less any impairment
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is any indication

that the trading right has suffered an impairment loss.

(F)  RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions

instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

SEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B2 5% 58 2% By &£ (continuea &)
=== For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(G)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial
assets within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

i

) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically loans
receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and bank and cash balances are classified in this
category.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(G)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont‘d)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are
included in non-current assets unless the Groups intend
to dispose of the investment within 12 months from the

end of the reporting period.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, are measured at cost less
impairment losses.

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans receivable and accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for the provision and arrangement of credit facilities
to the customers or provision of securities brokerage in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

/

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. The Group must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the asset’'s or disposal group’s
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(L)

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at
their fair values and are subsequently measured at the higher
of:

— the amount of the obligations under the contracts, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the terms of the guarantee contracts.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

/

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(P)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income on loans is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When a loan has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Commission income from securities brokerage services is
recognised on the date of transaction when the relevant
services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(Q1 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory

("MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund

Provident Fund retirement scheme
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,

employees when contributed

which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
involves

restructuring costs and the payment of

termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(R)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing
costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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==/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #% & 87 35 ¥ 2= Bt &% continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(T)  TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

4. TEEFHEE)

(T)

T8

P i X R BV OB E M IR < 42
o

B HA e < B8 28 42 F 1 B AR B 0m A 5
B o mNAEREMEEERTL A
BZWARKF AR MAKEBAR
BRI ZIHE - BE R B
BRIR B PIHER 2 E A - NEEH
BMEMBHE BERARGEAR
EEMAERERM B RGTE -

EIETR IR AR & M IS MR PR B B
K BB 2 B A B AT B AR B A
PRI AR R D B 2 ZBRER AR
EEBBEE - RAMBERRY
REBREIAAR  YRERTUENE
ARERERETNREREZE KB
ANEEBERXABAHREBERLZE
AN EREERBEE - WERE
BREBEXNAERTELER
AP MRE N 2R 5 (EBE
BRI BERAE - AT SR
MEENERE-

BLERIBERERRERHE QR
REZEARGERZ8 T IARER - H
7R 55 [ B 1 ) B R 2 AR 2 BT R
RERBZERAERRIGEHEDZ
(ER

A

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

)

TAXATION (Cont‘d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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e Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 %5 ¥R 2= B & (continued i)
=== For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESFHEK(E)
(Cont’d)
(U)  RELATED PARTIES V) BEATL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the FEALTAEAEEEB L ALK
Group. HEE o
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (A WBATAL  BlIZALHZ
related to the Group if that person: AT ZERREKREHEAREH
=g pd
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) b2l S I NS
B
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBEEATE:
o,
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of iy BREAEEZEZETEA
the Group. =
(B)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any (B) MHFFE THIEM IEM - B E B
of the following conditions applies: HASE(RRER)FH
(i) The entity and the Company are members of the (i) ZERBERNARBER—
same group (which means that each parent, SEZKERA(ANF
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BERA - WEBARKRMA
others). ESCpSNGIE A =R
) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —HEBRS—EBEBZ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AN R S
member of a group of which the other entity is a (EZ—EBAKER
member). Al ZEEKE AR 25
EARIRAEDRE)-
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MAEBHARR-—F=

party. FZzRERHE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—

/

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

(U)

RELATED PARTIES (Cont‘d)

(B)

(Cont’d)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.

The entity, or any member of the Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.
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=33/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 8 3% 3R 2 My 5 continiea s
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

\%

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #= & 4 %5 # 2= MY &F contnvea i \*:
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(W)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows of
the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for loans and accounts receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them

collectively for impairment, based on the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the delayed
payments in the portfolio, observable changes in economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for loans and accounts receivables, the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for loans receivable) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the financial asset would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.

For available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair value

subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;

impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

X)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting

period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3 & 87 75 3R 2 MY 51 continued )\
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

(A)

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The carrying
amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
determined to be nil after an impairment loss of HK$1,423,124
was recognised during the year. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are provided in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE FOR LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Group makes impairment allowance for loans receivable
based on assessments of the recoverability of the loans
receivable, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If there is objective evidence
that impairment loss on loans receivable has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires significant judgement on whether the objective
evidence for impairment exists and assessing the amount of
impairment loss requires significant estimates when determining
the present value of the expected future cash flows. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the loans receivable
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been charged.

As at 31 December 2017, the impairment allowance for loans
receivable amounted to HK$6,837,461 (2016: HK$10,492,669).
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=33/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 8 3% 3R 2 My 5 continiea s

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: price risk,

credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

(A)

PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity

securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2016: N/A), profit
after tax for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2.2 million (2016: N/A). This is mainly due to the changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or
unwillingness of a counterparty to meet its contractual
obligations. The carrying amount of the bank and cash
balances, loans and interests receivable, deposits and other
receivables, included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group’s financial assets, before taking into
account of collateral it holds. Exposure to such credit risk arises

primarily from its financing activities to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’a)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont‘d)

The Group's credit policy specifies the credit approval, review
and monitoring processes. All new customers of the Group are
subject to account opening procedures which include financial
background checks for credit verification purpose. Credit limit
applications are guided by a set of credit principles and these
applications are subject to regular independent review. The
board of directors of the Company are responsible to ensure the
credit policies and operation manual are appropriate to the
market need and the Group’s loans department ensures the
credit approval, review and monitoring processes as per
stipulated in the manual are properly followed by the operation
staff.

The Group also adopts a “two eyes” process requiring credit
approval at successively higher levels or committees depending
on, among other things, the size and nature of the proposed
transactions.

The credit quality classification of gross loans receivable (before
impairment allowance) using the Group's credit rating system is
set out in the table below:
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FEBERBHRBIERIZF B
(AR BRI BETISNARERE
g ZXHERAESAIHTREL
REBEFEHEERE -

REASENEEFRER  BEE
REBHBRRERENNERESR
ERRIEINMT

2016

—T—RF

HK$

BT

Performing B4 884,937,811 869,519,617
Doubtful R 585,027 21,434,318
Loss BB 1,183,387 1,531,339
886,706,225 892,485,274




FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’a)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont‘d)

The Group considers all loans receivable (except for loans to
foreign domestic workers) as doubtful if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue for more than 3
months and principal, accrued interest and/or future interest
may not be fully secured by the fair value of collateral at its
prevailing market price. The Group considers the loans
receivable as loss if the repayments of principal and/or interest
have been overdue for more than 45 days for the loans to
foreign domestic workers, or have been overdue for more than
6 months for all other types of loans receivable; and in both
cases the collection of principal and/or interest in full is
improbable after taking into account the fair values of the

collateral at prevailing market prices.

Based on the above individual assessment, the loans department
of the Group proposes to the management of the Company the
amount of impairment provision to be made at least on a
monthly basis. The Group also performs collective assessment of
the loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics. The impairment provision is
made based on the historical impairment rates of receivables
with similar credit risk characteristic.

Movements in the provision for impairment on loans receivable

are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R < MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

6. THEAREREE)

(B)

EEmk (&)

BEAER/IFBEFABEB=
A MERRERITHEAENR
FERGEAZHRAELS - BT
BRARKAE - REBRHAE
WE SR AR BR (RIS R EE R THE
BV E SRR IN) o R SMNE R B2 R T 12
HOERELAES R XA EETAR
Hi @45 H - REPTA E MK ER
EAe R/ SAHNEEFBHBBA
@A BELEREELT  &KHEE
RRBRTHEHENRFER T
g EAS R EFEE KRR -
AEEBRZERERRER -

HER BB AEEERE
LPEBARARANEEEREZAIEL
WEBRENSHE ARETBBES
Fr A £ B R A R YRR
ETRME RSB - BERET
AN AR RLEER R EKE R
RBEFEORERN EmE e

R E R ERFBEESERTIWT

Collective

Individual

At 1 January 2016 RZT—A"F—HA—H 4,036,982 2,525,063
Charged during the year FANFHR 7,426,425 2,964,321
Written off during the year F R 8 (5,783,402) —
Reversed during the year FREME (676,720) —
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=_ZT—KX&F

+TZA=+—HBR

—T—+tF—A—H 5,003,285 5,489,384
Charged during the year FANFR 4,857,068 —
Written off during the year F A 8 (6,241,525) —
Reversed during the year F N B [E (2,070,751) (200,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F

+T-A=+—H 1,548,077 5,289,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3 & 87 75 3R 2 MY 51 continued )\
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has certain concentrations
of credit risk as 9% (2016: 6%) of the Group's loans receivable
were due from the Group’s largest customer, and 32% (2016:
25%) were due from the five largest customers determined on
the same basis.

Collateral is obtained in respect of mortgage loans, secured
fixed loans and secured revolving loans which made up to 33%
(2016: 28%) of the total loans receivable as at 31 December
2017. Such collaterals comprise residential and commercial
properties and listed/unlisted equity securities pledged against
the balances. As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of
collaterals for the first mortgage loans which are mainly
residential flats based on its prevailing market prices amounted
to approximately HK$62.35 million (2016:
HK$201.71 million). The fair value of properties collateralised

approximately

for the second mortgage loans before discounting credit
protections available to the first mortgagees amounted to
(2016:
HK$122.58 million). The fair value/net asset value of other

approximately HK$55.95 million approximately
collaterals which mainly include listed/unlisted equity securities
amounted to approximately HK$361.26 million (2016:

approximately HK$277.12 million).

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

6.

\
\"=

EREREREE)

(B)

=B A /435 )
EERE (&)

R-ZZE—+&E+=-R=+—H A%
EH9% (ZZT—"F: 6% ) MEKRE
FREAEEZTAEFE  LWEREE
BE B3R (ZF — NF:25%)
WEKERKAAKRTE  WAEE
GE—TREMNEESETRR -

R=_T—+&+=-A=+—8 " 5%
BER  BEATHERLEERE
RERESNERRGEKERE
K& %33% (ZZT—/"F :28% ) ° #%
EEFREEREREHRERNE
EREAMENR ET EETR
KEHF RN-_E—+E+-_F=+—
H BXERBERNE#ER(EZAR
FEME)ERRTHEFTENRFEE
49 /62,350,000 L (Z T — XN F -
#9201,710,00078 7T) ° AR #73H @E A R
FE—ARANGERRERNE ZIRIE
BERONYMEERBAFLELAR
55,950,000 7L(= T — X F: 4
122,580,0007% 7T) » E ff, # # fn (=
ERELT EETRAZFSR) AA
F{E & EF1E A %9361,260,0007%
(= T — 75 F : £9277,120,0007%
JT) °

ROLASHEBRZEERRER
RHGHUFRECEEFRZRT -

e ST 2w = NE ST
EEERBAER -



\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(®)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The board of directors of the Company is
responsible to ensure the Group to maintain sufficient capital
funding and credit lines to meet liquidity requirements. This is
achieved by projecting cash flows on a regular basis. The
accounts department of the Group monitors and reports the
funding needs to management.

The Group is not exposed to significant liquidity risk since there
is no substantial irrevocable commitment associated with

financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 3 32 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'q) 6. TRIEMREREE)
(C) LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont'd) € nBHELERE)
The following table summarises the maturity of the Group's TREINR = —EF+_A=1+—
non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 based B - $%3Em$$mﬂﬁ{§‘f§é\%’ﬁi
on contractual undiscounted payments. Except for the interest- WEARZ ORISR E - Brat
bearing loans, the contractual undiscounted payments of all BEFI FTAESRBENEG ORI
financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts as at BNRORBEERNRSHARNER
the end of the reporting period. B

On Less than 3 to 12
demand 3 months months

RERMEE LR=EA

At 31 December 2017 R-T—t&+=AH

=+-H
Accounts payable FEABR K — 793,623 — — 793,623
Accruals and other payables — JE&T & F K H b fE (-

IR — 8,562,505 — — 8,562,505
Interest-bearing loans (note(a)) &5 & X (K 5 (a)) 150,000,000 — — — 150,000,000

150,000,000 9,356,128 — — 159,356,128

At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF

+=—A=+—H
Accruals and other payables &t 2 F [ H ftb /& 1+

RIE — 2,498,607 — 60,000 2,558,607
Interest-bearing loans (note(a)) &5 & 3K (Kt (a)) 58,537,056 — — — 58,537,056
Loan notes (note (b)) B RER (M55 0)) 32,873,178 — — — 32,873,178

91,410,234 2,498,607 = 60,000 93,968,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’a)

(®)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont‘d)

Notes:

(a)

The balance of HK$150,000,000 (2016: HK$50,000,000) that is

classified as “on demand” represents the loans from an
independent third party as at 31 December 2017, which are

repayable on demand.

The board of directors of the Company has closely monitored the
rate of utilisation of the facility throughout the year and make
sure all relevant interests were duly paid.

Included in interest-bearing loans as at 31 December 2016 are
mortgage loans from bank amounted to HK$8,537,056. The loan
agreement of the loan contain a repayment on demand clause
giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loan at any
time. Therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile,
such amounts are classified as “on demand”. The mortgage loans
were fully repaid during the current year.

The loan notes as at 31 December 2016 are classified as “on
demand” as the holders of the loan notes have the right to
request the Company to redeem all/part of the outstanding
principal amount of the loan notes on a day after the third
month of the date of issue of the loan notes and before the

maturity date.

During the year, the holders of the loan notes executed their
right to request the Company to early redeem all of the
outstanding principals of the loan notes. Details of which are
provided in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

6.
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©)

nBERARE)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B/ 7% 38 78 MY 2+ continved &) \
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(D)

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument or the interest income of a portfolio will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s major
interest-bearing assets at the end of the reporting period are
bank deposits and interest-bearing loans receivable and payable.
Interests on bank deposits are principally based on deposits
rates offered by banks in Hong Kong. Interest-bearing loans
receivable are charged at fixed or floating rates. Interest-
bearing loans payable comprise loans from independent lenders
which are charged at fixed rates, and loans from a bank which

are charged at floating rates.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure by matching the
interest rate profile of its assets and liabilities. The board of
directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring the policy
is appropriate and sufficient to monitor the interest rate
exposure of the Group, by regularly monitoring the benchmark
interest rates of products offered against prevailing market
conditions. Substantially most of the Group’s loans receivable
carried fixed interest rates. The Group prices these loans
receivable strategically to reflect market fluctuations and achieve

a reasonable interest rate spread.

In consideration of historical fluctuation in interest rates in
recent years, the Group expects a similar level of change within
the next twelve months. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant arising from the Group's

interest-bearing financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 6. TRIEAMREE(Z)
(D) INTEREST RATE RISK (Cont'd) (D) F =R (&)
The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group’s bank NEE R F B F X T &R 1717 2A
deposits and loans receivable and payable at floating interest REREKENRERNFERESNE
rates. Bl o

Effect on
Change in profit after Effect on

basis points tax equity
HERBLERR HiERM
B2 b me

31 December 2017 —T—t%F

+=-A=+—H
Bank deposits RITERK +/-50 +/-732,068 +/-732,068
Interest-bearing loans receivable B EER +/-50 +/-17,865 +/-17,865
Interest-bearing accounts receivable B EER +/-50 +/-21,261 +/-21,261
31 December 2016 —T—RF

+=-A=+—8
Bank deposits |ITHE K +/-50 +/-293,172 +/-293,172
Interest-bearing loans receivable s B ER +/-50 +/-277,061 +/-277,061

Interest-bearing loans payable B B ER +/-50 -/+35,642 -/+35,642

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(E)

BE_Z—tHFt+-A=+—RHLFE

6. TREAREREE)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT (E)
31 DECEMBER 2017

R-B—tH+-_A=+—HZ
SRTARER

2016
— N
HK$
om
Financial assets: SREE:
Available-for-sale financial assets A EemEE — 900,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit ~ LARAFEF ABZHS
or loss: BEE
Held-for-trading FIEEE 21,925,350 =
Loans and receivables (including cash and EFXRERFIE(RE
cash equivalents) RekRReFEED) 1,105,047,645 941,147,067
Financial liabilities: SHERE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ARFTEZ
ERAE 159,356,129 93,968,843
FAIR VALUES F R¥ME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBGFAGEMBRAZFIOE

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

MEENEREBANREERLY
BRRFERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & 84 7% 38 28 M 2+ (continued &)

o For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into
three levels inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(A)  DISCLOSURES OF LEVEL IN FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AT 31
DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016:

At 31 December 2017, the fair value measurements of the
Group's investment in listed securities (2016: Nil) classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recurring
and are determined using level 1 inputs.

At 31 December 2016, the fair value measurements of the
Group's investment properties classified as held for sale are
non-recurring and are determined using level 2 inputs.

(B)  DISCLOSURE OF VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND INPUTS
USED IN FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
2016

The investment properties classified as held for sale were
revalued on 31 December 2016 by RHL Appraisal Limited,
independent professional qualified valuer, on direct comparison
of price of properties of similar size, character and location
(level 2 measurement). The key input used in the valuation is
the price per square feet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x & B4 75 5 2 BV 5F contnuediy \*:
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two operating segments as follows:

Money lending — provision and arrangement of credit financing
in Hong Kong

Securities trading ~— provision of services in relation to securities
brokerage and investments in listed securities

The securities trading segment is a new business segment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 through step acquisition
of a subsidiary during current year.

The Group’s operating segments are strategic business units that offer
different services. They are managed separately because each business

requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profit or loss does not include the following items:

— gain on disposal of a subsidiary

— unallocated other income

— unallocated other gains and losses

— unallocated corporate expenses

Segment assets do not include the following items:

— deferred tax assets

— other unallocated assets
Segment liabilities do not include the following items:

— deferred tax liabilities
— other unallocated liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. oMWER(E)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets and FHEESPES EEREHEZEH:
liabilities:

Money Securities

Lending Trading

R HHEE

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_FT—t&#+=H
=+—HLFE
Revenue g 25 115,883,092 302,913 116,186,005
Segment profit/(loss) DEHEF(BE) 65,046,211 (4,400,776) 60,645,435
Interest revenue FE WA 115,883,092 966,859 116,849,951
Interest expense FERXZ (8,339,728) — (8,339,728)
Depreciation e (2,161,558) (483,584) (2,645,142)
Income tax expense FrisBiA = (11,095,412) —  (11,095,412)
Other material non-cash item: HMEARGER :
— Net charge for impairment allowance for —— FEUE FURE
loans receivable BB FR 2,586,317 — 2,586,317
— Impairment loss on goodwill — AmEREEE — 1,423,124 1,423,124
Additions to segment non-current assets DEERBDEERE 6,784,383 1,125,572 7,909,955
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—t%
+=-A=+—H
Segment assets DEWEE 1,033,913,848 86,812,945 1,120,726,793
Segment liabilities P E & 162,673,650 1,407,770 164,081,420
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s resources are HE_Z-—XE+_A=+—HILLFE "
integrated and no discrete financial information is available for the AEENERBES REDEEIR KRG
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of the Group’s AEBEXREMEMEASBELABER -
performance. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about Bt BEZIAEESBHDTHER -

the Group’s segment is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-Z—tF+-A=+—RHLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 8.

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities:

m '/ e 4 .
L 1/1// il 0 e
== //1/1/ 1/ 0.0 i

TERER (F)

OERSBIED AERBRAZHE:

Profit or loss i
Total profit or loss of reportable segments A 2 W5 4% F k&8 60,645,435
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A A s 13,212,189
Administrative and other operating expenses TEEEMEERAT (21,202,916)
Other income Efh A 1,394,476
Other gains and losses EH bz R g 1A 83,252
Finance costs B 765 K 7R (1,051,401)
Income tax expense F 5 #if (174,605)
Consolidated profit for the year F N ER A i A 52,906,430
Assets &aE
Total assets of reportable segments AEMOBREE 1,120,726,793
Unallocated amounts: ROB SR
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & B 872,748
Other receivables and other assets E fh W GRIE R H & B 18,894,610
Consolidated total assets FaBAERE 1,140,494,151
Liabilities B
Total liabilities of reportable segments AE2mOMEaE 164,081,420
Unallocated amounts: ROBLEFE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIE A B 269,194
Other liabilities HEth&E 10,250,767
Consolidated total liabilities e BEEE 174,601,381
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 8. oEER (&)
All of the Group's revenue from external customers and non-current HE-Z—+tFR-ZT-—R"F+A=1—
assets was generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years HIEFE AEEMBREINABFPRE
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. ENREHEEEEBNFENES
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no revenue from a HE_Z—+tER_ZT-RE+A
single external customer was amounted to 10% or more of the =+—HIEFE UEE-IHINRAZPOK
Group's revenue. GRS B W EH10%s0 A E -
9. REVENUE 9. W=
2016
—E-RE
HK$
T
Interest income charged on loan facilities PE XA E YA
AU A 115,883,092 81,601,121
Commission income from securities brokerage REBHLSLHAS
KA 302,913 —
116,186,005 81,601,121
10. OTHER INCOME 10. HfUg A
2016
—T—RF
HK$
T
Bank interest income AT F B A 132,229 16,314
Dividend income % 2 U A 486,150 —
Gross rental income e A Bz 210,218 1,452,735
Other interest income H b F 2 YA 2,018,881 —
Sundry income HMIEIA 84,268 20,518

2,931,746 1,489,567

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

11. Hte W #E K B8R

2016
—E—RF
HK$
& 7T
Fair value losses on investment properties BHEMEATFEEE — (1,900,000)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(A)) e —RHE AR R WS
(Bt 5E39(A)) 13,212,189 —
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing interest in  E#H st £ Asia Wealth
Asia Wealth to acquisition date fair value (note H) S AT A 2= 2 WS
38(A)) HEAQFES KR
(P 7E38(A)) 83,252 —
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant and LEME BEREE
equipment (EB#8) ek (538,774) 1,089
Realised loss from financial assets at fair value AR FEFABRD
through profit or loss EHEEND#R
Eﬂé (184,430) =
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair value AN EFABEE
through profit or loss, net ﬁmﬂﬁEA$@
HE)HE 1,970,110 —
14,542,347 (1,898,911)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BB E M
2016
T—NF
HK$
7T
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 62,079 377,516
Interest on other borrowings BARAFANBEENT
wholly repayable within five years HmEERE 8,339,728 13,699
Effective interest expense on loan notes A ﬁilﬂ*%’ﬂaﬁﬁ’]
wholly repayable within five years BEXEBHNER
A & 2 989,322 750,678
9,391,129 1,141,893




13.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B4 7% 3§ 72 My

&F (continued i)

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLLFE

13. BR% A iE F

The Group’s profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

RNEEBRTB AR MR GEA) THE
18

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation

Amortisation of leasehold land under
finance leases

Legal and professional fees

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Impairment loss on goodwill

Fair value losses on investment properties

Direct operating expenses of investment
properties that generate rental income

Minimum lease rental payments in respect of land
and buildings under an operating lease

Net charge for impairment allowance for loans
receivable

1% BB B

e

MEMENTHE L
fis

ERLREBEXER

HEME  BEERE
BE(KE)

HE—FHE AR WK

BERERR

REMELTEEBE

EEESBANREY
EZEREEMX

RBEEHEHN L
EBFXMNNRE
He

e s B OB (B B A AR

900,000
2,663,899

43,533
4,085,333

538,774

13,212,189
1,423,124

5,419,661

2,586,317

2016
—T—RF
HK$

BT

720,000
1,143,553

70,876
2,676,730

(1,089)

1,900,000

203,348

966,025

9,714,026

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
BE-T—tE+- A=+ —BLEE

14. FREH A X

For the year ended 31 December 2017

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2016

AN S

HK$

T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BEARE I — BANEH

Provision for the year FEREE 11,592,091 7,492,677
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEEE (20,000) (20,000)
11,572,091 7,472,677
Deferred tax (note 33) i RE B 1A (Y 5E33) (302,074) (345,025)
11,270,017 7,127,652

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2016: HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE"
BEEMNGRERBEHMFAERRAT G R &

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
16.5% (ZZ—7<4F © 16.5% ) KB K 4F B

December 2017.
o



ST

e

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as

follows:

14. RSB AR (&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )

== For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

FiT 15 79t 5 52 B2 B 756 A1 gt B 3R DA BB RIS T
BEZEHEMT

2016
—E-RE
HK$
P TT
Profit before tax B B4 Al i A 64,176,447 40,774,144
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% REAHE16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) (ZZE—RF:
16.5% ) &t H B B I8 10,589,114 6,727,734
Tax effect of income that is not taxable B8 R B B B
& (1,136,207) (174,590)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible ] 40 B 7 S2 D B A
TE 186,090 631,918
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised K2 B B = BB FL 75
2 37,816 —
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not 4 A T SR FA A TE s 18
previously recognised W BTE (7,504) (37,410)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR IEBEN
NETE 1,620,708 —
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBRBERG (20,000) (20,000)
Income tax expense FT 15 B B 2 11,270,017 7,127,652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EEEFRBEX
2016
AN S
HK$
BT
Employee benefits expense BERAMAEZ (TEHE
(excluding directors’ emoluments): EZME) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances %’?% - JEAL ROERL 16,554,354 9,643,098
Pension scheme contributions BIKE F B 689,918 528,483
17,244,272 10,171,581

(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2016:
HK$41,743). No balance (2016: Nil) of forfeited contributions
were available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2016: four) director and one (2016: N/A) ex-
director whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 16. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2016: one) individuals and the portion of emoluments of an ex-
director after his resignation as a director are set out below:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWER
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSEF IR

BAIRE F B

FABEHRAELZRHRI(ZZT—R
FMNTBBL) - RNEFEHB BE

BRI ARER (ZE—RF : &)
Al AR SRR MK -

TEsE=HESR

FRN AEELEGREFEERRE—
%(:;-ﬁﬁ‘@%)%?&—%

T—RNF:TEA)IEES H
M@Wﬁiﬁwn M2 - 8 TMH
(ZE—RF: —R)EEAR—HE
FEEF-BAEE2MEeF1BEH
HIEAR :

2016
—E—RF
HK$

T

4,365,894 1,196,107
59,150 18,000

4,425,044 1,214,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Cont’d) 15. EER/FABAXZ (&
(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d) B hEZ=HEERE
The emolument of the remaining two individuals and an ex- ENRMERERER —BAESTHME
director fell within the following band: NETHEHEHAZLT :

Number of individuals

EEAH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ Jt &
1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000/% 7T &
2,000,0007% 7T 2 —

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEfE A K A&

(A)  DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS A E=Be
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 EEEHE_T—tF+-_A=1—
December 2017 is set out below: ALEFEMNMESSHINMT :

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

HREFALTUEESH (FRAFATARMBAS) MRERBEANEHFHHNE

Allowance
and
benefits in Performance Pension Share-
kind related scheme based
FEIETH (Note) bonuses contribution payments
BIEREY RERAM BHR2HE  URHE
e \BR ) k(318 #R ERNAR
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T T BT BT
Executive directors: HITES:
Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) JEBIAR (B 7t (a)) — 1,700,000 — 11,250,000 212,500 — 13,162,500
Tsang Yan Kwong (note (b)) 2% (i EE(b)) — 1,044,273 (41,250) — 118,360 — 1,121,383
Leung Wai Hung (note (b)) 212 1 (it 3E(b)) — 677,762 (41,516) — 61,486 — 697,732
Ho Siu Man (note (b)) fa] 4 8 (Ff = (b)) — 626,980 (34,065) — 56,756 — 649,671
Cao Huifang (note (c)) BB (M) — 70,667 — — — - 70,667
Xie Si (note (c)) 4 (1 EE(0) — 70,667 — — — — 70,667
Independent non-executive BIAERITES :
directors:
Yu Wan Hei (note (d)) REE (F k() 59,333 — — — — — 59,333
Fung Kam Man (note (j)) R 8% 32 (B 25 () 120,000 — — — - — 120,000
Wang Zhiwei (note (k)) T 54 (k) 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Chan Kin Keung Eugene (note (e)) B 3 5% (P 5 (e)) 11,645 - - - - — 11,645
Ng Ting Chi (note (f)) RER (D) 33,903 — — — - — 33,903
Chan Tung Tak Alain (note (g)) 5% 3 12 (W &E(g) ) 42,581 — — — — — 42,581
Li Long (note (c) g (M) 40,667 — — — — — 40,667
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (note (h)) 2 B8 (FEE(h)) 15,667 - — — — - 15,667

Total for 2017 —T—tE8E 443,796 4,190,349 (116,831) 11,250,000 449,102 — 16,216,416
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z—

E—+HF+-A=+—RILEFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(A)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

December 2016 is set out below:

16. EE /A K M =

(#&)

BEME (&)

BEFREHBSEHImT :

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REMALUEEZN(TRAXRAXENEAR) AREREENRELHHES

Allowance
and  Performance Pension
benefits in related scheme Share-based
Fees Salaries  kind (Note) bonuses  contribution payments Total
REREY REHEE  RAELHE  URGA

e & B T4 H®R EROTR @

HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$

BT BT BT AT BT BT BT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) 5 B (B 7 (a)) — 1,200,000 - — 150,000 — 1,350,000
Tsang Yan Kwong (note (b)) 23 (B (b)) — 1,072,500 31,573 100,100 134,063 — 1,338,236
Leung Wai Hung (note (b)) R {2 1 (P45 (b)) — 643,500 20,468 65,000 64,350 — 793,318
Ho Siu Man (note (b)) fa Bk (P (b)) — 572,000 28,258 60,000 57,200 — 717,458
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Chan Lai Yee (note (i)) PR B8 52 (Bff 2E()) 59,333 — - — — — 59,333
Independent non-executive BIAERITES :

directors:
Yu Wan Hei (note (d)) REBE (M) 120,000 - — — — - 120,000
Fung Kam Man (note () R 8% 32 (B 25 () 54,516 — — — — — 54,516
Wang Zhiwei (note (k)) T &4 (k) 22,581 — — — — — 22,581
Lee Kin Fai (note ()) 28 (M &) 65,806 - — — — — 65,806
Tai Man Hin, Tony (note (m)) 0 SCEF (B 7E(m) ) 97,742 — — — — — 97,742
Total for 2016 —T-REEE 419,978 3,488,000 80,299 225,100 405,613 — 4,618,990
Note: The allowance and benefits in kind refers to untaken leave s : RREREWRNIEE S 2 R RIR

provision for director(s).

(a) Resigned on 7 February 2018

(b) Resigned on 22 September 2017

(c) Appointed on 15 September 2017

(d) Retired on 28 June 2017

(e) Appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on 2 August

2017

HRRAS -

(a) R-ZE-NF-_ALtB#
(=3

(b) R-FB—EtFAA=_+=
EI%;E

(@ R_ZF—tFALA+THEAE
Z%%E

(d) R-FB—tEFERNA=_TN
EI;EE

(e) ﬁ/\ ti/\ﬁ ‘f’)\

Eﬁé{fﬁﬁﬁé\f:;
NAZHEHE

—tF



16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(A)

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Note: (Cont'd)

(f) Appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on 9 October
2017

(9) Appointed on 24 August 2017
(h) Appointed on 14 November 2017
(i) Retired on 28 June 2016

() Appointed on 18 July 2016

(k) Appointed on 24 October 2016
()] Resigned on 18 July 2016

(m) Resigned on 24 October 2016

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 S 87 75 3R 72 MY 5T continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

16. EE/A KA = (&2

(A)

ExMe (#)
MiEE ()

(f) RZEB—tFEXA=-TN
HEZEIR -_ZT—LF

+ AN BEHE

(9) RZZFE—tFENA=+MHE
BRZE

hy R=-ZT—tF+—A+MHW
BRZE

(i) RZZE—RFESNAZTN
HiRFE

() R-ZZE—X~"FLtA+TNAR
EE T

(k) RZE—R"FETA=Z+TMHM
BRZE

(1) RZZE—X~"FLtATNAR
B

(m) RZZT—R"F+A=+mW
B &

FALEEEREXRBRELEM
MW ZH (ZF—RF:H\) -

EERNRS  BHRANNEX
Fl2

F 4% 3 F A ] B 5 4D SR 77 B DA R
RAMERFINFERREBREKE
MNBEARS RHERANTHER
B EENERFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

17.

18.

/ =y

DIVIDENDS

The declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016 of HKO0.2 cents per ordinary share was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 June 2017. The dividend payable of HK$7,257,600 was settled on
28 July 2017.

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2017.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the vyear attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$53,177,690 (2016: HK$33,646,492), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 3,628,800,000 (2016: 2,831,968,021) in
issue during the year.

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not
have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

17.

18.

=)

HE-_ZT—RE+-_A=+—HIEES
&R B AR B B A% 2 m AR0. 278 L B R R R
ARRE—ZE—tFNA-_+N\BE7TH
MR EF R g E#t#E - EARE7,257,600
BLTER-_Z—t&tA-+N A&

EFTRARBE_FT—t5+ -8
=+— B FE AR R ETR S -

BRER
SREKEF

EREARBITIERRNARHEAE AREE
A & F53,177,690%8 o (= T — X F ¢
33,646,492/ 70) I F N B B 1T B AR hnaE
F 15 % £13,628,800,0000% (= T — /5 F ¢
2,831,968,0210%) 5T & -

S B A
MR EARAREE-F—LER-F—A

FH- A=+t HIEMAEFELEEME
EEEL AR MUE25SREFTRN -



For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
HE_Z—+HF+-_A=+—HBIt&FE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings

25

Leasehold

improvements

HEMmERE

19. W% -BERKRHE

Furniture
and fixture
REREE

KE

Office
equipment

MAERE

Computer

Tl

Cost %3
At 1 January 2016 RZE-—RF—-—HA—H 1,632,336 1,506,442 448,664 862,422 956,353 5,406,217
Additions AE — 1,515,460 331,903 472,259 456,474 2,776,096
Transfer from investment EREREWE
properties 655,000 — — — — 655,000
Disposals HE = (497,892) (69,953) (180,179) (72,239) (820,263)
Transfer to assets classified as held HEE=H M AFEL &
for sale (note 29) & & (Pt E29) (2,099,775) (540,080) (77,000) — — (2,716,855)
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZT—X"F+=A
1 January 2017 =t+—HARZZT—tF
—H—H 187,561 1,983,930 633,614 1,154,502 1,340,588 5,300,195
Additions NE — 5,089,670 570,498 753,697 1,496,090 7,909,955
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wb — KT R R A
(note 38(a)) (Fft 5£38(a)) = — 8,118 24,022 273,935 306,075
Disposals HE s (1,463,520) (253,330) (679,443) (116,908) 2,513,201
At 31 December 2017 R-_Z—t&+=A
=+—H 187,561 5,610,080 958,900 1,252,778 2,993,705 11,003,024
Accumulated depreciation RitinE
At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—R~"F—A—H 1,039,271 1,506,442 439,582 838,763 887,309 4,711,367
Charge for the year FAXH 205,777 482,650 112,795 168,372 173,959 1,143,553
Disposals & — (497,892) (69,953) (179,468) (72,239) (819,552)
Transfer to assets classified BRESERAFELHE
as held for sale (note 29) & E (MaE29) (1,120,386) (157,524) (22,458) — — (1,300,368)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+=A
1 January 2017 =+—BR
—ZT—+&—HF—H 124,662 1,333,676 459,966 827,667 989,029 3,735,000
Charge for the year FRZH 18,756 1,253,768 206,116 332,509 852,750 2,663,899
Disposals HeE —_ (1,138,392) (205,835) (537,513) (92,687) (1,974,427)
At 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—+t&+=-A4
== 143,418 1,449,052 460,247 622,663 1,749,092 4,424,472
Carrying amount AR (E
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A
=+—A 44,143 4,161,028 498,653 630,115 1,244,613 6,578,552
At 31 December 2016 R=ZZB—X"F+=A
=+—H 62,899 650,254 173,648 326,835 351,559 1,565,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER FINANCE LEASES 20. @EHAOTNHE L

2016

AN S

HK$

T

At 1 January n—HA—H 1,328,694 15,425,168

Transfer from investment properties EEOREME — 13,645,000

Amortisation during the year F N 5 (43,533) (70,876)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale HEESBEARELE

(note 29) & = (F15E29) — (27,670,598)

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 1,285,161 1,328,694

The Group's leasehold land is analysed as follows: AEBNHEEL DT AOT -

2016

AN S

HK$

T

In Hong Kong RNE
Medium-term leases REAFR 49 1,285,161 1,328,694
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & 84 7% 38 28 M 2+ (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

At 31 December 2017

21. GOODWILL 1. &
HK$
BT
Cost A&
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R—_Z—XFE—HA—H - —_Z— <&
+ZA=+—BR=Z—+tF
—HA—H —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38(A)) TR U BB — R KB 2 /) (M 5E38(A)) 1,423,124
At 31 December 2017 RZEBE—tFE+-A=+—H 1,423,124
Accumulated impairment losses BExtiBEEBE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R—ZT—AR"F—F—H  —ZT—F
+ZA=+—HBEZZT—tF
—HA—H —
Impairment loss recognised in the current year AN F E R R E & B (1,423,124)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H (1,423,124)
Carrying amount RE{E

RZT—+tF+=_A=+—H =

At 31 December 2016

R_E—

ANE+=-A=+—H —

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating unit (“CGU") that are expected to
benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of

goodwill had been allocated into the securities trading segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market development.

Due to the tense competition in the securities trading market, the
Group expected that there would not be sufficient trading activities to
cover all relevant costs and expenses for this CGU in the near term.
Consequently, the directors determined to
amounting to HK$1,423,124 during the year.

impair the goodwill

RAEBAHPAREEE  RKBEDE
ERMRZEEBR A HIREZESESE
BU(HReELSM]) BHEZEREED

@Eim%f?ﬁﬁ%

ReELBUZAROSBEREECRE
BEFERABRRREREEIET BRASR
EXEZIERRABABRITRE - BE

EMNRREEBZBR - AEEFARBR
ERzEREEZBN TSI ERRASE

A BN AT E R R Z ARG R TR
Ko THE ER K K& HEEABIRBTIED
FHmMBSERATEBETIAR

ENRBLHEEMSHFHR  NEETEH -
EHERCEEEDENEEZESEE
BEAMMERBRNARAS &K - ESF
ﬁmiﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%%{ # 3|
1,423,124 7T »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSET — TRADING RIGHT

23.

2. BNEE — BE5H%

HK$
BT
Cost and carrying amount R A B BR T (B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=Z—RF—HA—H —ZF— x4
+=ZA=+—BEK=ZF—+tF&—A
J— E .
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38(A)) U B8 — R BB 2 | (M 5E38(A)) 3,100,000
At 31 December 2017 RZEBE—tE+-A=+—H 3,100,000

The Group’s eligibility right to trade on or through the Stock
Exchange is considered to have indefinite life, which is not amortised
but is reviewed annually for impairment and is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
trading right in 2017. The recoverable amount has been determined
on the basis of fair values less costs of disposal using replacement
cost method. No impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

AEERKEBHRAEZNERENE
EERAERFH YHAREEEAESF
ETRERNREHREBRRREEREE
EA B R B B B TR B E B -

R-ZZE—tF AEERZEZENHATKRED
SRHETERN - TRE &I ERBRAK
REENRAFERHERAETE - REZE
—E Lt A=t RLEFELERE
R EEE -

23. It ETHEE

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less 12 B 2SR (B BT 18 51 R
impairment loss B IE ETHRRA B 5

2016

—T—RF

HK$

B TT

— 900,000

The unlisted equity investments are carried at cost less impairment loss
because the directors are of the opinion that the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. Such investments represent investments in shares of
Asia Wealth upon completion of step acquisition on 1 April 2017, Asia
Wealth become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Further details of the step acquisition are set out in note 38(A) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The available-for-sale financial assets were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

HRATEZABHEFEBEE EFR
BIELMEZRENAFETE A FE
2 WIE LTS IRE TR A AR R E B
BIERE -BRAZRERER T —tFMA
— B ERK DB EERKER & & RAsia
Wealth®J %1 » Asia Wealthf B AR & 2
F2EMBAR -AESBERWEZE—
B BHR RS W75 R &R M TE38(A) ©

AHHEZemMEENEITHE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. RITBLARINRE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December

2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued/registered

RIE
BRARIMFEBET

Percentage of
ownership
attributable to

T—tFE+ZA=+—H A2 AMH

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
AR I R AATELBERE
£ HEBE BT EMBEE Bk TEER
Direct Indirect
=k ;3 & =
First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands  HK$150,000,000 100 — Investment holding
First Holdings Consortium Limited HEEXZEE 150,000,000 7T & &R
First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Inactive
F—ERMB(HRE)FRAA HE 17 7T TEmE
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands Us$90 100 — Investment holding
Limited
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings EBRETES 903 7T ®E IR
Limited
Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 —  Investment holding
BARE—HERBERAA RBREIHE 1% 7T RE =R
Gorgeous Rise Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 — Investment holding
Gorgeous Rise Limited REBRZHS 1003 7T ®EER
First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 — 100  Provision and
arrangement of
credit facilities
E—ERBBAERIA B 153,550,000 7T RERZHEERE
Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100  Investment holding
Honour Event Limited RERLHES (= ®E IR
Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 — 100  Securities Dealing
TMEIEESBRRA 5 90,000,000 7T EHEE
First Asia Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Inactive
E—DMNEFBRAA B 10,0007 7T TEEX
First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Inactive
E—ERMBEB)ERAA BE 10,0007 7T Tme
First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100  Investment holding
E—FRAEKRBERAA B 17 7T REER
Credit Speed Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100  Inactive
AEFRAF 5 10,0007 7T TmEE
Note: All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies. Mizk: ElFrEMBAREARBREMEAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

150

25. LOANS RECEIVABLE 25. EWE R

2016

—E-RF

HK$

BT

Loans to customers BEFER 878,068,879 883,564,878
Accrued interest receivables FE L e AT IR 8,637,346 8,920,396
886,706,225 892,485,274
Impairment allowance on individual assessment B 3 T RO R E B (1,548,077) (5,003,285)
Impairment allowance on collective assessment SR AR ERE (5.289,384) (5,489,384)
879,868,764 881,992,605

Analysed as: 55

Non-current assets ERBE E 346,022,026 439,202,306
Current assets mEE E 533,846,738 442,790,299
879,868,764 881,992,605

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed

AEE—EAREHIR KR E R E R
BREEERARRERE -EEEEHR
&8 MR -

regularly by management.

The loans receivable above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Eat R EFRIAETTEHE ©



25.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Cont'd)

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R < MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

25. EWER(Z)

.

EEEESMWT

2016
—E—RF
HKS$
T

Neither past due nor impaired N8 H SOR (B
— Unsecured — K 545,075,972 636,003,288
— Secured — BHEH 269,159,667 228,478,133
Less than 1 month past due BMET~E—EA 45,176,745 3,905,863
1 to 3 months past due BmE—==[EA 22,025,427 185,396
Over 3 months past due AR e =8 A 3,500,000 946,937
884,937,811 869,519,617
Impaired (note) BB (M) 1,768,414 22,965,657
886,706,225 892,485,274

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivable for

which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at year
end date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
individual customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment on these individual loans was necessary as
these loans receivable were substantially/fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period or there had not been a significant change in credit
quality that these balances were still considered fully recoverable.

MisE: EREEAERREBRELSIHNEHK
BENERRERKERERE -

I 45 760 H 7 48 064 (8 Y B WX KR B R % 0
WEBRDENTIRAERZTSEM -

E@HE Y SERENEKFIRESZZRAE
SEERFEBTENEAAZPEH R
BRERR ARNZFRRERE N RS
BBy, BHRUOXEELELHESE
A& - BEREERDEE AT 28RE
HE = RSB AR IS BB SR E R E
B o

A
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25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

Amongst all past due but not impaired loans, the secured fixed loans
of HK$20,000,000 (2016: Nil) were secured by the collaterals with fair
value (based on the quoted market price on the Stock Exchange)
amounted to HK$17,205,279 (2016: N/A). The first mortgage loan of
HK$3,500,000 and second mortgage loan of HK$1,992,826 (2016:
second mortgage loan of HK1,262,288) were secured by the collaterals
with fair value (based on its prevailing market price) amounted to
HK$5,200,000 and HK$11,800,000 respectively (2016: second
mortgage loan of HK$12,000,000) as at 31 December 2017. The
Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining
individually impaired loans receivable. Over 90% of the loans
receivable were subsequently settled after the end of the reporting
period.

The individually impaired loans receivable relate to clients that were in
financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivable was expected
to be recovered. As at 31 December 2017, no collateral was held by
the Group for the impaired loans receivable. As at 31 December
2016, the impaired loan of HK$17,440,510 was secured by collateral
with fair value (based on its prevailing market price) amounted to
HK$16,700,000. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of
the remaining individually impaired loans receivable for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

25.

N\
N\
\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 75 3 22 M & contnuea s\
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

EWRERE)

EFRAESHETERENERT  HK
18 7F Hi & 320,000,000 T (= Z — /N &F ¢
)R ATFEERBIMMBTE) A
17,205,279 L (ZF — /R F : TEA) K
R E AR - §IRIE B E 5£3,500,0007%
TERE R RBE 1,992,868 (=
—NF  BDIRIRBEE 1,262,288 7T) Th
UR—Z—+F+-_A=+—HBAFEUL
HERME2) 9 545,200,000 7T &
11,800,000 7L (Z T — R F « EZRIRB
B 712,000,0007%8 70) K 35 1 G4 1E R 3 o
2 £ [ 30 Tk 52 T (8 B RE A B R B R
BEMAEKA R - B190%H B E R E B R
MEEARBEENT -

BERRERKEREREAMBERNEF
B EHES o BRI\ UKD -
R-ZEBE—+tFE+-_A=+—H ' A£EEL
EREREERKERFEEAMERR R
—E-XRE+-_A=+—HBH HEER
17,440,510 L VA A FEGZEERME
5T ) 16,700,000/ 7T K i 4F & (E A& 1K
H-BE-_T—XR"E+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEENETHTAABSRT @R
BEEKREZRNERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26. EW R
2016
—E—RF
HK$
& 7T
Accounts receivable arising from business of BHFEEEBELEN
dealing in securities: FE U AR 5K ¢
— Clients — XF 4,252,258 =
The aging analysis of the accounts receivable is as follows: LATR 75 FE YR BR SR B BR B 9 4T
2016
—E-REF
HK$
77T
Past due 2 18 Bf
— 1 to 3 months — —Z=f@A 4,252,258 —
The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the business BLHEBRXBEANEUERR Z2EEBRA
of dealing in securities are two days after trade date or at specific RPBEMARSIZERF 2 BB &R
terms agreed with clients. MmiE °
The past due accounts receivable from clients in the amount of KRBT P K& FE UAR 574,252,258 T BA
HK$4,252,258 bear an interest of 8% per annum and relate to a wide FFE8%ETE W RE AW EITEBHER L
range of clients who had no recent history of default. The Group has BB AEBERUAEERZER
a right to off-set the accounts receivable from these clients by the PRHRENESEHEHEZERER 2 BREE
securities held by the Group on behalf of such clients. At 31 HK-RZE—LF+ZA=+—H H&E
December 2017, the total market value of their portfolios of securities F A KB TEX A7,700,0008 T (ZF

was approximately HK$7,700,000 (2016: N/A). —RNE:TEA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27. UAFEFTAEBERNERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2016
—E—RF
HK$
& TT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at fair value A& £ MR A
E5 o BRAFE 21,925,350 —
The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices. THBEFENAFEDIERRITEAE-
The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as Tl eREENREEDSERFIEEE -
held for trading.
The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity LHeRMEERR LELTRAZSHEKE -
securities that offer the Company the opportunity for return through NBERREBARAFEREFSARARIR
dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or HEHge HEWEETHHAREERS
coupon rate. *o
28. BANK BALANCES — TRUST AND 28. RITHER — EERBILK
SEGREGATED ACCOUNTS 1=
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks or AEBERFRETIRERBREBLE
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal REF O UBREERBEEBEANER
course of business. The Group classified the clients’ monies as cash HE - AEEEBKLERFRES B RE
held on behalf of clients under the current assets section of the EMBERARORBEEE THRREP
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised the FENRE UTHRAENTHEEZTFEOHE

corresponding accounts payable to respective clients. BABR K ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & 84 7% 38 28 M 2+ (continued &)

o For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Pursuant to a provisional sale and purchase agreement dated 29
November 2016 entered into between the Group and an independent
third party (“Purchaser”), the Group agreed to sell its entire equity
interest in Techlink Investments Limited (“Techlink”) and all the debts
owing by Techlink to the Group as at completion to the Purchaser at
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$91,000,000 subject to
adjustments at completion (“Disposal”). The Disposal was completed
on 20 February 2017. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of,
and the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are discussed in
note 39(A).

Techlink held certain investment properties (“Properties”) for rental
income purpose. In view of the capital gain which was expected to be
derived from the Disposal, the management of the Company
considered that it was in the interest of the Company and its
shareholders to dispose of Techlink in order to realise the Group's
investment in the Properties and to utilise the proceeds from the
Disposal for further development of the Group’s money lending

business.

29.

TERBBFEHEEE

BEAEERBYE=H(EHFIIILA
HE-ZT—R"E+—A=t+ALBH—BE
REEHZ AEEREMEFHEER
M ERR AR (@) 22 BRE R
BHEEZRRZIKEBERASEEBZRER
7%+ 4838 & X {891,000,000/% 7t (7] 7 58 A
RoHHHAE)(HEFE]) - HESFEN =
E—+tHF_A-t+HEK - BEHEEERK
BEAREENBEMIEBNGTEFBER
B 5E39(A) & 7 ©

BHEFEE TREME(HWE]) FERRHE
SRA-ERFEHEHETBELEEARR
#w ARAEEERALEE BB AZRA
SERMENRERDBHEEEMEK
RE-FPERRAKENRERS - T4
A A Je H R E A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 22 MY 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 29. P EARBELEEE (&)
(Cont’d)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Techlink at 31 December BMBR_TE—R"F+ZRA=1T—HZEE
2016 are as follows: &EEEE Bl T
2016
—NF
HK$
77T
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) Y2 - BB KR A& (B EE19) 1,416,487
Investment properties BEY 47,700,000
Leasehold land under finance leases (note 20) AR THE L1 (K £20) 27,670,598
Other receivables H g Uy FE 13,500
Assets classified as held for sale PERBELEEE 76,800,585
Deferred tax liabilities (note 33) EER TR A E (M 5E33) 179,289
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held B ABELEEEEZRBEN
for sale A& 179,289
Net assets classified as held for sale DERBELEEEFE 76,621,296
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and FASERBELHEEENEMEE
accumulated in equity relating to assets classified WAR B ERERZ &
as held for sale 5,203,775

The investment properties classified as held for sale were revalued on
31 December 2016 by RHL Appraisal
professional

Limited, an independent

qualified valuer, on direct comparison of price of KAATEBEBARA

properties of similar size, character and location (level 2

DEAFIEHEZRENMENR T —
ToA=t+-—EABIEEXAERMGEM

NE

RIEZLBRARER

R HEEHRBENR 2 ERERGHEER

measurement). The key input used in the valuation was the price per —iE) - FHEFRzETERASEAETTE
square feet. FHREE o
At 31 December 2016, the investment properties classified as held for RZE—RFEF+ZA=+—8 (AFER

sale with a fair value of HK$34,000,000 was pledged as security for
the Group’s bank loan.

34,000 000,%75)“*57%%{’%%2&@%
¥WEE EFAAEERBRITERZIE
& e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
== For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30. EERR
2016
—E—RF
HK$
& 7T
Accounts payable arising from business of BHFEEEBELEN

dealing in securities: FE AR :

— Clients — 5P 793,623 —
The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the business of BEEEEBELENENERRZEERAR
dealing in securities are two days after trade date or at specific terms RHZIBEMASIZRARF 2 BB HIER
agreed with clients. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of ME - -BIEFEBEERI>NT BRAAQAE
the directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not give ERRERINBHAEEXEBHMNE R
additional value in view of the nature of the securities trading DM |BINESE -
business.

31. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS
2016
—E—REF
HK$
T
Bank loans RITERK — 8,537,056
Loan from independent third party BYE=ZFER 150,000,000 50,000,000

150,000,000 58,537,056




Ees= -] | FpE—_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

31. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Cont’d) 31. 5T B ER(E&)
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BENEEESTNAT :
2016
—E-RF
HK$
7 TT
On demand or within one year BER—F R 150,000,000 50,665,908
In the second year F_F — 694,767
In the third to fifth year FE=FRZERF — 2,269,441
After five years hF & — 4,906,940
150,000,000 58,537,056
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment — SR FHEEERS
after one year but contain a repayment on REREBIER
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) GIARESEE) B
RITERI S — (7,871,148)
Amount due for settlement within 12 months +ZEARNEHZ5KE
(shown under current liabilities) GIAREERE) 150,000,000 50,665,908
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in AEBEEEMNRMENNBITEE-
Hong Kong dollars.
At 31 December 2016, the bank loan of HK$8,537,056 was secured R—ZZFE—X"E+=-A=+—H 8,537,056
by charge over the Group’s investment properties classified as held for BTHRITEFIUNAEESERFELE
sale (note 29). B %AW (M 5529) (E B IR
At 31 December 2017, the Group had no available undrawn RZE—tF+ZA=+—H x&EX
borrowing facilities (2016: Nil). EOHPAREREERE (T —RF:
') o
The average interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as RIEBHROFHFEMAT -
follows:
2017 2016
—ET—tF —ZT—RF
Bank loans RITERK N/A FEH 4.25%
Loan from independent third party BYE=FER 5% 5%




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

32. LOAN NOTES

32. EXRRE

2016
—T—RF

HK$

BT

On demand REREE — 32,873,178

Pursuant to the placing agreements (“Placing Agreements”) entered
into between the Company and two placing agents, namely Convoy
Asset Management Limited (“Convoy”) and Jun Yang Securities
Company Limited (“Jun Yang"”) (collectively as the “Placing Agents”)
on 11 May 2016 and 27 June 2016 respectively, each of the Placing
Agents agreed to act on behalf of the Company to procure placees,
who are independent third parties, to subscribe for the 4.5% per
annum (payable quarterly in arrears) loan notes (“Loan Notes”) to be
issued by the Company with principal amount of up to
HK$100,000,000 respectively at the placing price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the Loan Notes. The Loan Notes will be
matured on the day immediately preceding the second anniversary of
the relevant date of issue. The placing period will last for a period of
one year commencing from the day after the respective date of the
Placing Agreements. The Company has right to early redeem, and the
holders of the Loan Notes have right to request the Company to
redeem, all/part of the outstanding principal amount of the Loan
Notes on a day after the third month of the date of issue of the Loan
Notes and before the maturity date at an amount equal to 100% of
the redeemed principal amount.

On 27 June 2016 and 27 July 2016, the Company issued the Loan
Notes in the principal amount of HK$25,000,000 and HK$8,000,000
respectively to placees who were independent third parties procured
by Convoy.

On 29 June 2017 and 28 November 2017, the holders of the Loan
Notes exercised their right to request the Company for redemption of
the Loan Notes. On 29 July 2017 and 28 December 2017,
HK$25,000,000 and HK$8,000,000, being 100% of the principal
amount of the Loan Notes issued were redeemed from the respective
holders of the Loan Notes accordingly.

As at 31 December 2016, the principal amount of Loan Notes in issue,
less transaction costs, is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method after initial recognition. The effective
interest rate of the Loan Notes is 4.764%.

BREARRERBRERE (REEESE
BAERRA T(HﬁrJ)&EKﬁ FBRA A
(8B 4R REREREDHSIR=Z
*/;\gﬂﬂ +—HE-_Z—XRNFANA
:+ta%azzm%ﬁﬁaﬁ§m
#®) SRERERERRARQ A D BME
FERBRABIE=ZF)R %%E$Aﬂ%
TRER R AISE(BEEFRHEIMEH
ERZEBR(ERER]D A8 HEe 25
7%100,000,0008 ¢ ' L EBHEERERE
BARSERI00% - EXZH BN B AH
%ﬁa%%:ﬂim—aﬂﬁom%%%
HEEHZSEAHRAH —F - A0
BRRERERN MEXRZBEFEABEE
KARRRERERETRHEE=EA
FEHBAMATERERZE 225
BOASLE SHEAENREERIASEY
100% °

RIE—RNENA-_+TEtHER-_ZT—F
tﬂ:+ta'$“7m§tﬁﬁmﬁm
ANEBILBE=A)BTA2EI R B
25,000,000/% Jt }8,000,000/ Tt 2 & 7k =
% o

%*%ftiﬁﬂ*+na&:%ft¢
+—A=Z+ N B ERXREZRFEATERE
MERAR ﬂ,ﬁg@gﬁi‘ﬁ cRIZE—t
F+A=-t+hBE=ZZ—t&F&+=A
ZtN B ARBBEABBERZES
& A & [£125,000,0005% Jt %8,000,000/% JT
(BB EHTERERI00% A )

R-ZE—RF+_A=+—H BE%TE
ZRZASENBRZIHAR)  RIF
Bk 62 R IR B R A
cERERZERFE

K
g
=

< B4.764% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 22 MY 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EEBIE
The following are deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the LTAREERRAZEEHEABRREAE :
Group:

Depreciation

allowance in

Accelerated excess of
tax related

depreciation depreciation
MIEBIE EBHEEARE
wE HINEERE

Provision for
impairment
on loans and
receivables
ERRERK
IR EEAE

At 1 January 2016 H-E—AE—A—H 154,156 (118,835) (416,635) (381,314)
Charged/(credited) to profit or F A& Bz KPR
loss for the year (note 14) GtA) (Mt 5E14) 25,253 118,835 (489,113) (345,025)
Transfer to liabilities directly R EHEHEAFIEHE
associated with assets EEEEHEBNAE
classified as held for sale (Fff529)
(note 29) (179,289) — — (179,289)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 HRZZT— X F+ A
January 2017 =Et+—BR=ZZT—+t
F£—H—H 120 — (905,748) (905,628)
Charged to profit or loss for & ATEB &K H Mk (K
the year (note 14) +14) 269,074 — 33,000 302,074
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—tF+=H
=+—H 269,194 — (872,748) (603,554)
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DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 3 32 My
For the year ended 31 December 2017

33.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for statement of financial position purposes:

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLLFE

IEERL IR (2)

TE R B AR R R T F AR A IR A AR
(IR IHIR) 3 AT

2016
—T—RF
HK$

BT

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

BT IR B AR
B FE IR B B

269,194
(872,748)

120
(905,748)

(603,554) (905,628)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$21,075,088
(2016: HK$2,100,955) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

34. SHARE CAPITAL

34.

Authorised
iESE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each

RZE—R"F—H—H

A HAR - BB S R]TE R AR 2R A ROR
% 42 5h 75 T8 E51821,075,0888 T (ZZF — X
12,100,955 0) RIELEHRIBEE - #
HEER MRS -

IR A<

Issued and fully paid
EETREBHR

at 1 January 2016 SRR EE0.027 7T
2 A 250,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 302,400,000 6,048,000
Issue of shares on placing (note (a)) B & B AT AR 1D
(B (@) — — 60,480,000 1,209,600
Issue of shares under rights issue RIR R FEITRD
(note (b)) (B (b)) — —  3,265,920,000 65,318,400

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at

31 December 2016, 1 January 2017

and 31 December 2017

R=F—XRE+=H
=t+—R8 -==
—tF—A—HK
=t =S
=+—ABKREE
0.027% 7T 2 & A 250,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

3,628,800,000 72,576,000

ST (continued &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 75 3 22 M & contnuea s\

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a) On 17 December 2015, the Company and Jun Yang entered into a placing
agreement in respect of the placing of a maximum of 60,480,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.174 per share. The placing was completed on 8 January 2016 and
an aggregate of 60,480,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
allotted and issued. The premium on the placing of shares amounting to
HK$9,313,920, net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$402,518,
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

(b) Pursuant to a resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 19 February 2016, the issue by way of rights issue on
the basis of nine rights shares of HK$0.02 each for every share in issue
and held on the record date (“2nd Rights Issue”) at the subscription
price of HK$0.127 per rights share was approved.

On 31 March 2016, the 2nd Rights Issue was completed and
3,265,920,000 rights shares of HK$0.02 each were allotted and issued.
On the same day, the premium on the issue of rights shares of HK$0.02
each amounting to HK$349,453,440, net of share issue expenses
amounting to HK$9,293,748, was credited to the Company’s share

premium account.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing
debts as may be appropriate in the circumstances.

N\
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==/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 %8 22 Bt 5% continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt comprises borrowings and obligations under finance lease less
bank and cash balance. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public
float requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2017,
31.43% (2016: 34.15%) of the shares were in public hands.

Any breach of the financial covenants by the Group may result in the
banks demanding for repayment of the loan. There had been no
breach of the financial covenants in respect of any interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

34. BRAK (&)

$*lﬁﬁ§§ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ$oﬁm
RNREBFER AL ABERNEER
BB H S 05%#%@%%%&
MEHEEERBITRRSER - LHAE
BARBHAAEDE D (BIRA - REEH
REAERE) -

BE_ZT-—tH+-_A=+—HBR=%
—RE+TZA=Z+—BLEFE FEEE
BEANBR BERIBEFLELSY -

AEBZBRRIATIIKERNRE : ()BT #
FrpO Bt S P A T I - H = A 25%H) ik
MEBRRARER  R(NVEESSEENA
B BE 75 3255 o

AEETAZEERMDBE BERLEH LR
FDOBEBRENEARDESORE %
BREBRIAEERBREAFERN—EREAR
E2B5%MABIHFRES K -RN=F—tF
+ZA=+—"HB AZHEBREEROHH
31.43% (ZF —75%F :34.15% ) ©

AEB-BERVBE LA ﬁﬁT*%i
BEEE - BE_T—LtFR_F—KF
+=ZRA=+— EEEV'$EIMﬁE&
FRAREETHNITBRE -

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 KRB RRRR FHES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )
(A)  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A) AR BB E
2016
—ZE—RF
Note HK$
B 5 7T
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries R EARRIEE 245,000,789 150,000,789
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESMEE — 900,000
Total non-current assets IERBEERTE 245,000,789 150,900,789
Current assets BB E
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE - ke Rk
receivables H b i Y 3R IE 715,265 409,602
Due from subsidiaries AL NGIE ) 496,528,248 627,162,880
Bank and cash balances SRITRIB &% 81,708 93,055
Total current assets mEEERERE 497,325,221 627,665,537
Current liabilities B =K
Accruals and other payables FEEH B R R H Ath fE
5K 3AE 10,096,715 528,634
Due to subsidiaries FE 5B B A Bl RE 20,241 20,241
Loan notes BERER — 32,873,178
Total current liabilities BB EAE 10,116,956 33,422,053
Net current assets BB EERE 487,208,265 594,243,484
NET ASSETS BEEE 732,209,054 745,144,273
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital AR A< 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves s 36(b) 659,633,054 672,568,273
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 732,209,054 745,144,273

E—tF+-A=+—RILFE

RZZE-NF=ZA-+=HEE=
BHE TR TIEELREE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Li Sin Hung Maxim Wong Kai Lun

FiRit =Rw
Director Director
= =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. A QAR BMR AL HEES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY g (&)

4
(Cont’d)
(B) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B) ARBEEESF
Proposed
Share Capital Contributed  Accumulated final
premium reserve surplus losses dividend
BEAY
R 43 itk (R AR BAEER RethsiE BS
Note HK$
B 3% T T T
At 1 January 2016 R=-ZF—~"F—A—H 7,590,768 138,279,615 220,718,070 (42,872,210) — 323,716,243
Loss for the year FHNEE — — — (219,064) — (219,064)
Issue of shares on placing RERETRG 34(a) 9,313,920 = = = = 9,313,920
Issue of shares under rights issue 18 4 {5 & % 17 & 19 34(b) 349,453,440 — — — — 349,453,440
Share issue expenses B 1 8 77 5 % 34(b) (9,696,266) — — — — (9,696,266)
2016 proposed final dividend —E-RERERERES 17 — — (7,257,600) — 7,257,600 —
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZZT—X"E+=A
1 January 2017 =+—-8k
—T—+%—-F—H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (43,091,274) 7,257,600 672,568,273
Loss for the year FREE — - — (5,677,619) —  (5,677,619)
Dividend paid BRRE — — — —  (7,257,600)  (7,257,600)
At 31 December 2017 R=%F-t%+=A

=+-—H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (48,768,893) — 659,633,054
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 75 3 22 M & contnuea s\

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

36. RESERVES

(A)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive

income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 84 and 87 of this

annual report respectively.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 December 2014, the change of the domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda was
approved by the shareholders. The change of domicile of
the Company was completed on 5 February 2015. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group's reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the Company’'s shares in 2009 and
represented the difference between the nominal value of
the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
under the reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of
the Group reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and
represented the excess of the consolidated net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal value of the
share capital

of the Company issued in exchange

therefore.

36. @@

(A)

AEBFHEBEREZSH D HIEHT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont’d)

(i)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed

surplus account is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if:

— the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of an owner-occupied property, which became an
investment property because its use had changed, at the
The
transferred directly to retained profits upon subsequent

date of transfer. revaluation reserve will be

sale or retirement of assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea ) "

For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

37.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations and providing the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants. Eligible participants include full-time or part-time
employees, directors (including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors) and any consultants or advisers
(whether professional or otherwise and whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or
distributor,

customer and business partner of the Company and/or any of its

unpaid), contractor, supplier, service provider, agent,
subsidiaries, who, at the sole determination of the board of directors
of the Company, have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”). The Share Option Scheme was
adopted on 24 November 2011 and, unless otherwise terminated by
the shareholders or the board of directors of the Company, will

remain in force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company as at the listing date of the Company or the
date of shareholders’ approval of a refreshment of such limit in a
general meeting of the Company (“Scheme Limit”). The Scheme Limit
was refreshed pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 June 2017 and the Scheme Limit as refreshed is 362,880,000
ordinary shares, which represents 10% of the issued ordinary shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

37.
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For the year ended 31 December 20177 HEZ-_T—+F+_A=+—HLFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval by all the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
such period as determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which period shall not be more than 14 days from the date of the
offer. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during a
period as may be specified by the board of directors of the Company,
the expiry date of such period shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant of the option. Unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors of the Company, there is no general requirement on the
minimum period for which an option must be held or any
performance targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares on GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its inception.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 HZE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP

On 1 April 2017, the Company completed its subscription for
79 shares of Asia Wealth at a cash consideration of
HK$79,100,000 (“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was for the
purpose of diversifying the Group’s business and the risk
thereof.

Immediately upon the completion of the Acquisition, the
Company held approximately 88.89% of the issued share capital
of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
additional shares under the Acquisition. Asia Wealth became a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Through the
Acquisition in Asia Wealth, the Company has acquired an
indirect equity interest in Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Wealth, which holds the licence
to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and

is principally engaged in dealing in

securities.

Prior to the Acquisition, the Company held approximately
9.09% equity interest in Asia Wealth (or approximately 1.11%
of the issued share capital of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the additional shares under the
Acquisition) and the investment was recognised as available-for-
sale financial assets. The fair value has been re-measured at
HK$983,252 and the fair value gain of HK$83,252 has been
recognised in the other comprehensive income, which was then
released to the profit or loss upon completion of the

Acquisition.

38. WBHE 2
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(A)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %%
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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O ,Z ﬁ% $§ E Mj EE (continued #&)
HE-_ZT—tF+t-A=T—HILFE

38. WEEM B2 A (&7

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE A DEREE-HHATEEESR
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP BEEEZASBENBAR (&)
(Cont'd)
The following table summarises the consideration paid for the TREPALEBEEHE MR E
Acquisition, and the fair value of the assets acquired, liabilities ERWEBHEEE  FRES
assumed and the non-controlling interests at the acquisition BERFEERERZ ATFE:.
date.
1 April 2017
—E—tE
A—H
Purchase consideration BERE
— Cash paid — BB 79,100,000
— Fair value of previously held interest in — AT Asia WealthFr 5 #E 25 2 A F
Asia Wealth B 983,252
80,083,252
The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities BB EERMAEERZ
assumed: NEE:
1 April 2017
—E—tH
mA—H
Property, plant and equipment M BER&RE 306,075
Trading right =er 3,100,000
Other assets HihEE 200,000
Bank and cash balances RIT R HR 84,050,107
Bank balances — trust and segregated accounts RITHESR — B RBILEP 3,429,962
Accounts receivable JE U BR K 7,682,715
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEMRIE - 12 E K& H b E KRG IE 1,009,682
Accounts payable FE 7T RR K (11,133,722)
Accruals and other payables FEGHE A K H 4th F& 1~ 50IA (152,175)
Total identifiable net assets AT BF A ERE 88,492,644
Non-controlling interests FEE AR = (9.832,516)
Goodwill Bl 1,423,124

80,083,252

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

/ =y

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(A)

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP
(Cont’d)

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition:

38.

B B 8 A

w (48)

THEBEE -—RaAHEESR
BEEEZASBENBAR (&)

RWBERELEZRSIRAFRE

HK$

BT

Cash consideration BeRE (79,100,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEWERSRREEED 84,050,107
4,950,107

Acquisition-related costs of HK$72,000 have been charged to
other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The goodwill arising from the Acquisition is attributable to the
synergies expected to arise from the business combination and
future growth of Asia Wealth.

The gross contractual amounts of accounts and other
receivables were HK$8,692,397. None of these receivables had
been impaired nor expected to be uncollectible.

Asia Wealth contributed a revenue of HK$302,913 and incurred
a loss of HK$3,090,338 in the period between the date of
Acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the Acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2017, the
total revenue of the Group for the period would have been
HK$116,228,395, and profit for the period would have been
HK$51,405,781.
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the

The proforma information is for illustrative

revenue and results of operations of the Group that would
actually have been achieved had the Acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2017, and is not intended to be a
projection of future results.

The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interests
at their proportionate share of Asia Wealth's total identifiable
net assets for this Acquisition.
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B - Bl A& E H A2 &= A
116,228,395% 7t & HA N i F #& &
51,405,781 7t ° 8 £ & BHE £ 35 #F
g AUORBEAEEERESER
T—+tF—A—HEKHNBRT
a%Tm B 2 R S 248 - HOR
FEHRREERTEA -

AEEDEERUBBBEHEEER
Asia Wealth o] 3% 51 /5 & &= A E P b
% % Lt Bl e SR FE 158 AR M 2% o



38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(B)

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS WITHOUT
CHANGE IN CONTROL

On 24 October 2017, the Group acquired the remaining
approximately 11.11% of the issued shares of Asia Wealth held
by the non-controlling interests for a cash consideration of
HK$15,000,000. Immediately prior to the purchase, the carrying
amount of the approximately 11.11% non-controlling interests
in Asia Wealth was HK$9,561,256. The Group recognised the
same amount in non-controlling interests and a decrease in
equity attributable to the owners of the parent of
HK$5,438,744. The effect on the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R < MY 3T (continued &)
BE- T tE+-A-+—BLEE

38. WEEM B2 A (&7

Y

FEVE I 2 T W s FR R A 2

R-ZE—t&E+A-+WE XEH
U B8 JE 2 % M 25 FT 35 Asia Wealth g2 R
B NBEZETRD  REREA
15,000,000/ 7t © 2 £ W BE AT » Asia
Wealth#911.11% B9 JF £ AR # &5 2 BR
M (& 49,561,256/ T ° N & @ i R
HRESENIFLERES LT ARHE
B A G W 25,438,7447 TT ©
FAARAARBEAEABLHERNTE
Bt n T

2016
—T—RF
HK$
T
Carrying amount of non-controlling P S JE T R 2 2
interests acquired AR TH B 9,561,256 —
Consideration paid to non-controlling B IEERERKE
interests (15,000,000) —
(5,438,744) —
There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in RIE - NEHEEFTERERE
2016. TERNRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE TEEsT

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. ieH e RERMEF
OF CASH FLOWS

(A)  DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (A HE—HEHEA A
As referred to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, WANER A B IS AR MY s 29 P Sl - AN
the Group completed the disposal of Techlink on 20 February SRR _FT—+tF_A=-1+HZK
2017. L B 2 175 o
Net assets of Techlink at the date of disposal were as follows: BBREHEBRNEEFENT :
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment Y HERZE 1,416,487
Investment properties "REYE 47,700,000
Leasehold land under finance lease REHEAOTHEE L 27,670,598
Other receivables H b i YR TE 9,643
Tax payable FE TR IE (40,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBAE (172,722)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 76,584,006
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) e — B A R Y (K eE11) 13,212,189
Total consideration REBTE 89,796,195
Consideration satisfied by BEUTHARAINRE :
Cash iR 91,000,000
Less: Direct cost associated with the disposal B BN ERBNEEKRA (1,203,805)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEENR S RAFRE 89,796,195




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 S 87 75 3R 72 MY 5T continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. iR RERMET (©Z)
OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(B)

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM B) BEBEEGEBAELZAMBZHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TERHEINAEEREETSMELR
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BzEBHFHE BREREIFREE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for PoMEFIMEENEBERREN
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EELIERKRBEREFTRAR
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows SESRCHEeRERDERMER
from financing activities. PNRERENEBE-
Interest-
bearing loans Loan notes
(note 31) (note 32) Total
ATERER ERER
(B a£31) (B 5£32) g
HK$ HK$ HK$
&I &I &I
At 1 January 2017 RZZF—+t&—HF—H 58,577,594 32,933,178 91,510,772
Interest-bearing loans raised MEFFRER 150,000,000 — 150,000,000
Repayment BN (58,537,056) (33,000,000) (91,537,056)
Interest paid SRR (1,995,767) (922,500) (2,918,267)
Interest expenses (note 12) F B = (FfaE12) 8,401,807 989,322 9,391,129
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—tF+=H
== 156,446,578 — 156,446,578
Analysed by: DA
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+=-—A=+—8
— Principal — & 150,000,000 — 150,000,000
— Accrued interest (grouped in other —— JE&HF| &
payables) (83 N\ H ftb pE 1~ 30 38) 6,446,578 — 6,446,578
156,446,578 — 156,446,578
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—A—H
— Principal — & 58,537,056 32,873,178 91,410,234
— Accrued interest (grouped in other — — JEETAIE
payables) (5% A E A e 4 3008) 40,538 60,000 100,538
58,577,594 32,933,178 91,510,772
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

41.

At 31 December 2017,
contingent liabilities:

the Group had the following significant

The Group’s external legal counsel advised that the Group’s loan
agreements which involve charging an interest rate at a rate more
than 48%, but less than 60% per annum shall be presumed to be
extortionate and such portion of extortionate interest is potentially
unenforceable as determined by the court. Subject to the court's
this
having regard to all

consideration of facts relevant to individual borrowers,
presumption may be rebutted if the court,
circumstances is satisfied that such rate is not unreasonable or unfair.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to such
legal risk comprised its aggregate loans receivable of approximately

HK$14.77 million (2016: approximately HK$16.36 million).
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(A)  AS LESSOR:

At 31 December 2017,
premises to third parties under operating lease arrangements.

the Group did not lease out any

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one subsidiary of the
Company leased out office premises to third parties under
operating lease arrangements with negotiable lease terms
ranging from one to two years. At 31 December 2016, the
Group had total future minimum lease payments receivable
under a non-cancellable operating lease as follows:

40.

41.

Within one year —F A

FREE

RZE—tF+-_A=+—HB Kx&EE#%E
BUTEARRAE

AEBWIINEAEBRREL  2EES &
U BY 4B 1848 % 18 K 1260% H) & FI| R 1) & 3¢
%%Eﬁi%%ﬁﬁv% AR FE 1 R R By
o Al BE A E R E A D A58 BT - A
ﬁv%&ﬁ&%%ﬁﬂ%@mAﬁ%%%
ERFMBBRZEEMNERFEILIFETE
B AAF A#EEA FERE - R=F
—+tF+ZA=+—HB ASEEBRZE
ERBNEESBEAEE FTHERANER
B4 #914,770,000 7T (ZZ — ;N6 ¢
#916,360,0005% 7T) °

REBORH
A fERHEA :

RZB—+F+=-RA=+—H &K
BErERBEECEREROLZHAE
=FHBEERDE -

BE_Z-—R"EF+-_A=+—8HI
FE BRELLHEORHE  ARA
BB ARIME=SHERAE 7
HENEERS —EMF - R _F
—RNETZA=1+—R AEERE
AN AT A8 T A0 R R R B W AR (K
HEeBBENBERLT

2016
—E—RF

HK$

7T

— 262,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 3 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 20177 #HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HIEFE

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'a) 41. REBNZH (2)

(B) AS LESSEE: (B) 1EREMA :
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group leased HE T —+tF+=-A=+—HI
office premises under operating lease arrangements with FE - BELERNZHE  AEEA
negotiable lease terms ranging from two to three years. The ENRNE  AREANEERAME=
rentals were fixed over the lease terms and did not include F-HEHRNZHEBEETE B
contingent rentals. BEXRER -
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum R-_FE—tF+=-_A=+—8 &%
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases E R & A RS A S A AR R R E
as follows: NEREHESEFNBERLAT
2016
—T—RF
HK$
T
Within one year —F R 5,725,754 921,683
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FERF
(BIEEREMF) 6,898,581 267,653
12,624,335 1,189,336
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEFR S
(@) In addition to those related party transactions and balances (@) BUHFUBHRERPEMIHFAIKE
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had PIEMBER R MEHZIN A&
the following material transactions with its related parties EFANHEAAESAATERRS :
during the year:
2016
—E-RE
HK$
7T
Interest income from a related company RE—HEERRNE
(note i) WA (PR E1) 674,320 —
Interest income from a related company ke —HEERRFNE
(note ii) L @N{EzalD) — 371,312
Commission expenses relating to loan notes [ —MEE AR A
paid to a related company (note iii) BERZENRS
5 2 (P i) 126,822 23,953

Advertising expenses to a related company [l —EIBERRMNES
(note ii) 7 S (Bt &ii ) — 80,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-T—tHFF+-_A=+—HIEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b)

(a)

(Cont’d)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

The related company is Surplus Huge Limited, of which the former
director of the Company, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, is a director.
Mr. Tsang ceased to be a director of the Company on 22
September 2017.

The related company is National Arts Entertainment Limited, which
is indirectly wholly-owned by a company of which Mr. Sin Kwok
(“Mr. Sin"),
Company, is a substantial shareholder, chairman and director. Mr.

Lam the former chairman and director of the
Sin resigned as the chairman and director of the Company with
effect from 7 February 2018.

The related company is Convoy Asset Management Limited, which
is indirectly wholly-owned by Convoy Global Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Group had paid compensation to key management personnel

during the year as follows:

42. RERRS (&

(a)

(%)

B A -

)

(if)

(iii)

#Z% @@ # 1 8 ASurplus Huge
Limited - M AR B AEESF -
HEERZAREEES - B4
R-TB—+FNA-_F+_BTHE
ERARES -

ZRAERARAEBREFRAT
HARB R EEEREZEBME
EEEEDEEETERR - £/F
REFEN-HARMEEZEHRS -
HEER T N\F_ALRAER
EARBEERESE -

ZRAERBREREEEEARA
A AR EEBRRFERRRE
BRERRBARNEKZEHRS -

FRAAEEMEIZERAB N
BT

2016
—T-RF
HK$
BT
Short term employee benefits including RHEERA(RIES
salaries, bonuses, paid annual leaves and & L BHFEER
sick leaves Ko R) 15,767,314 4,213,377
Post-employment benefits B 8RKNEF 449,102 405,613
16,216,416 4,618,990




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 87 7% 3R 78 MY 3T (continuea &)
For the year ended 31 December 20177 EZE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 7 February 2018, Mr. Sin resigned as the chairman and
director of the Company. Following his resignation, Mr. Sin will
remain as a consultant to the Group providing advisory services
on the Group’s business.

Pursuant to the director's service agreement dated 29
Sin and the
Company, Mr. Sin had compensated the Company with such

November 2012 entered into between Mr.

amount in cash of approximately HK$5,200,000 upon the early
termination of the employment as a director of the Company.

On 2 March 2018, the Company announced that First Credit
Limited (“FCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
had breached the repayment terms of an interest-bearing loan
in the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (“1st Loan")
obtained from an independent third party (“Lender”). The 1st
Loan together with the interest accrued thereon in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$52,500,000 was due
and repayable on 27 February 2018. FCL made a partial
repayment of approximately HK$22,500,000 on the due date
and the remaining principal amount of HK$30,000,000 became
past due on the same date.

As the breach of repayment term constituted an event of
default, the Lender requested FCL and the Company, which
served as the guarantor of FCL under the loan agreement, for
immediate repayment for all amounts owing by FCL to it by 13
March 2018 and including the overdue principal of
HK$30,000,000 as mentioned above, loan principal in the
amount of HK$50,000,000 (“2nd Loan”) which was originally
due and payable on 30 March 2018, the interests accrued on
the overdue portion of the 1st Loan and on the 2nd Loan. The
Group subsequently repaid HK$5,000,000 to the Lender and is
under negotiation with the Lender for a settlement arrangement

on the remaining balance.

The management has reviewed the Group’s financial position
and is of the view that the Group will have sufficient cash
resources to satisfy its working capital requirements and to
meets its obligations, including the overdue borrowings.

As at the date of these consolidated financial statements, the
total outstanding principal of the 1st Loan and the 2nd Loan
and the interest accrued thereon amounted to approximately
HK$77,500,000.

(a)

3. REHRE R

RZZT—N\F_A+tH  ELELEsT
RARERRES - L EBTES
BAEREERER  SLASENERS
IR EER AR ©

BREBEALEEARAQRINR T ——4F
+T—AZF+NABITIHNEERSH
FOASAERMKIEERAARABE
£ B RAR A K E 45,200,000
TR

RZZT—N\F=A=-H KAAEMH
?ﬁ—ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬂ%ﬁlﬁhﬂ(ﬂiAﬂZ%
BEWBARN(FCLD) ZERABYE
=hA((BMEBADBREAREEAR
50,000,000/ Tzt B ER ([F—
BRDWEEGKK - E—F2EHER
Z5HF B A £ #4952,500,0007% 7T fE A
ZE-\FZA=Zt+tRAEHEE -
FCLRE BB ERE I D ERL
22,500,000 st - M 8 T A & %8
30,000,000/ Jo A A A 71 51 -

HREREEERBRENENH WK
B AZRFCLE AR QR (EEFCLRE
RipZEBTHERARZZE—NE=
B+ =B EECLIIERNE
BHEBE BELLEGBEANSE
30000000;‘%71%?@‘5’\\*?*)\%
“A=1+HIHENNERLASE
50,000,000/ 7t ([SE=E &R ) LA K
MNE—ZERRFEFE_ZEZEREHI
DPHBRHAMBE - AEBEEERER
5000000,%75%551 T A IFEBRE
AN EE RS T84 R SR #5158 2 B ©

EEECENAEE MBI RNIL
REAEBERERERESE RN

HEBBeHFERRITEE  BFEA
HfgE -

BA 2SR AV BEHREREY  F—%58
MEZEERNAEELASRE
,\mﬁ B A ##4)/477,500,000% T ©
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Financial Summary 87 ¥ E &

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group's
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

HEARECKRELMBHRRENBEREMK
FEASENVEEEUAREE BBEREARY
EEEEINOMENT - ABEIXTEREEZ

HBHEHMEN—FD -

FINANCIAL RESULTS Mg
2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RE ZE-RFf ZEZ-—@mE ===
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT B IT B IT
Revenue, other income Yoas ~ Bt U A A R
and other gains and losses Hinlam REE 133,660,098 81,191,777 68,404,224 59,839,009 60,736,968
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FT15 % alis 1 / (E18) 64,176,447 40,774,144 29,498,918 29,099,577 17,127,669
Income tax expense FEHEx 11,270,017  (7,127,652) (4,626,212) (4,101,899) (2,126,369)
Profit/(loss) for the year Frmfl/ (Fia) 52,906,430 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300
Profit/(loss) and total UTALRER
comprehensive income wH (58 &
attributable to: 2EUNEE:
Owners of the Company E/NSE R DN 53,177,690 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300
Non-controlling interests JE VR (271,260) — — — —
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE-BENRER
2016 2015 2014 2013
—Z-RE ZE-IHFf Z—T-—@HmE =Z—T-—=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT P T 7S TT BT
Total assets BERTE 1,140,494,151 1,023,527,303 488,912,017 423,479,509 367,809,693
Total liabilities BELE 174,601,381 (98,115,879)  (12,746,179) (84,481,353) (71,765,763)
965,892,770 925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930
Equity attributable to RAREE ANEEER
owners of the Company 965,892,770 925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930
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